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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016

1.

Corporate Information

Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad ("the Bank") is a public limited liability company,
incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia.

The registered office of the Bank is located at Level 16, Menara Bank Pembangunan,
Bandar Wawasan, No. 1016, Jalan Sultan Ismail, 50250 Kuala Lumpur.

The holding and ultimate holding company of the Bank is the Minister of Finance
{Incorporated) ("MOF (Inc.)") a corporate body established under the Minister of Finance
(Incorporation) Act 1957 in Malaysia.

The Bank is principally engaged to provide medium to long term credit and financing facilities
under both Conventional and Islamic financial business principles to finance infrastructure
projects, maritime, oil & gas, technology and capital intensive industries in manufacturing as
well as other identified sectors in line with the country's development policy. The principal
activities of the subsidiary companies are as disclosed in Note 48.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of the principal activities of the Bank
during the financial year.

The financial stétements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance
with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 31 May 2017.

Significant Accounting Policies
2.1 Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared in
accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRS?), International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and the requirements of the Companies Act,
1965 in Malaysia.

The financial statements incorporate those activities relating to Islamic Financial
Business, which have been undertaken by the Group. Islamic Financial Business refers
generally to the business or activity of granting of financing in accordance with Shariah.

The Group and the Bank present the statements of financial position in order of liquidity.
An analysis regarding the recovery or settlement within 12 months after the reporting
date (current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non-current) is
presented in Note 47(c).

The financial statements of the Group and of the Bank have been prepared under the
historical cost basis unless otherwise indicated in the summary of significant accounting
policies below. The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia ("RM") and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand ("RM'000") except where otherwise

indicated.
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)
2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont;d.)
2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Subsidiaries and basis of consolidation
() Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group
controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

« Power over the investee i.e. existing rights that give in the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee;

* Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

. fhe ability to use its power over the investee to affect its return.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether Group has power over an investee, including:

» The contractual arrangements with the other vote holders of the investee:
* Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
» The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control. In the Bank's separate financial statements, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses. The policy for the
recognition and measurement of impairment losses is in accordance with Note
2.2(h). On disposal of such investments, the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and their carrying amounts is included in the income
statement. Dividends received from subsidiaries are recorded as a component
of revenue in the Bank's separate income statement.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the

Group and the Bank as at and for the financial year ended 31 December of
each year.
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (;:ont'd.)
2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)
2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)
(a) Subsidiaries and basis of consolidation {cont'd.)
(ii) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the
Bank and its subsidiaries as at the reporting date. The financial statements of
the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting date as the Bank.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases. In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
intragroup balances, transactions and unrealised gains or losses are eliminated
in full. Uniform accounting policies are adopted in the consolidated financial
statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

Non-controlling interests ("NCI") represent the portion of profit or loss and net
assets in subsidiaries not owned, directly or indirectly by the Bank. NCI are
presented separately in the consolidated income statements and statements of
comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated statement of
financial position, but separate from parent shareholders’ equity. Total
comprehensive income is allocated against the interest of NCI, even if this
results in a deficit balance. Acquisition of NCI are accounted for using the
parent entity extension method, whereby the difference between the
consideration and the fair value of the share of the net assets acquired is
recognised as equity.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a
subsidiary, it:

+ Derecognises the assets {(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
at their carrying amounts;

+ Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest in the
former subsidiary;

» Derecognises the cumulative foreign exchange transiation differences
recorded in equity;

« Recognises the fair value of the consideration received,
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

(a) Subsidiaries and basis of consolidation (cont'd.)

(ii)

(iii)

Basis of consolidation (cont'd.)

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group loses control over a
subsidiary, it: (cont'd.)

* Recognises the fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary;

* Recognises any surplus or deficit in the profit or loss; and

* Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income to profit or loss or retained earnings, if
required in accordance with other MFRSs.

All of the above will be accounted for from the date when contro! is lost.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration
transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and included in
administrative expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and
liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance
with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as
at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity
interest is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss. It is then considered in the determination
of goodwill. '
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)
2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {(cont'd.)
{a) Subsidiaries and basis of consolidation (cont'd.)

(ili} Business combinations and goodwill (cont'd.)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the
scope of MFRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
("MFRS 139"}, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
either in profit or loss or as a change to Other Comprehensive Income ("OCI").
If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of MFRS 139, it is
measured in accordance with the appropriate MFRS. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not re-measured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred and the amount recognised for NCI, and any previous
interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly
identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and
reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the re-assessment still results in an excess of the fair value
of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the
gain is recognised in profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in
a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree
are assigned to those units.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed off, the goodwill associated with the
disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

(b) Investment in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture ("JV") is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the JV. Joint control
is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control. The Group has interests in JVs that is disclosed in Note 12.

The considerations made in determining significant influence or joint control are
similar to those necessary to determine control over subsidiaries.

The Group's investments in its associate and JV are accounted for using the equity
method.

Under the equity method, the investment in an associate or a JV is initially
recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise
changes in the Group's share of net assets of the associate or JV since the
acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or JV is included in the carrying
amount of the investment and is neither amortised nor individually tested for

impairment.

The statement of profit or loss reflects the Group's share of the results of operations
of the associate or JV. Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of
the Group’s OC!. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in
the equity of the associate or JV, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate or JV are
eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate or J\.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and a JV is
shown on the face of the income statements outside operating profit and represents
profit or loss after tax and non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries of the

associate or JV.

The financial statements of the associate or JV are prepared for the same reporting
period as the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the
accounting policies in line with those of the Group.
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)
2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)
(b) Investment in associates and joint ventures (cont'd.)

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary
to recognise an impairment loss on its investment in its associate or JV. At each
reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective evidence that the
investment in the associate or JV is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate or JV and its carrying value, then recognises the loss as
share of loss of an associate or JV.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the JV, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or JV upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

In the Bank's separate financial statements, investments in associates and JV are
accounted for at cost less impairment losses. On disposal of such investment, the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount is included
in profit or loss.

{c} Foreign currency transactions
(i) Functional and presentation currency
The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates ("the functional currency"). The consolidated financial statements are

presented in Ringgit Malaysia ("RM"), which is also the Bank's functional
currency.
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

{(c) Foreign currency transactions (cont'd.)

(i)

(iii)

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional
currencies of the Group and the Bank and are recorded on initial recognition in
the functional currencies at exchange rates approximating those ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date.
Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at
historical cost are franslated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the
initial transactions. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on
translation of monetary items at the reporting date are recognised in the income
statements except for exchange differences arising on monetary items that
form part of the Group's net investment in foreign operations, which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and accumulated under
foreign currency translation reserve in equity. The foreign currency translation
reserve is reclassified from equity to the income statement of the Group and on
disposal of the foreign operation.

Exchange differences arising on the transiation of non-monetary items carried
at fair value are included in the income statements for the period except for the
differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised directly in equity. Exchange differences arising
from such non-monetary items are also recognised directly in equity.

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into RM at the rate
of exchange ruling at the reporting date and income and expenses are
translated at exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. The exchange
differences arising on the translation are taken directly to OCI. On disposal of a
foreign operation, the cumulative amount recognised in OCI and accumulated
in the separate component of equity, is reclassified from equity to income
statement (as a reclassification) when the gain or loss on disposal is
recognised.
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

2. Significant Accounting Policies {cont'd.)
2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

(d) Property, plant and equipment

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Subsequent to recognition, plant and equipment and furniture and fixtures are
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The policy for recognition and measurement of impairment is in accordance
with Note 2.2(h), below. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced in intervals, the Group and the Bank recognise such parts
as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation, respectively.

Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the
carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition
criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the
income statements as incurred.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment
when events or change in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable.

Freehold land has an unlimited useful life and therefore is not depreciated. Building-
in-progress are also not depreciated as these assets are not available for use.
Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is provided for on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life, as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings 19 - 50 years
Vessels 5- 30 years
Furniture and equipment 3-10 years
Partitioning, instaliation and renovation's 3 - 20 years
Motor vehicles 5-8 years
Dry-docking expenses 2.5 -5years

The residual values, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any and the net carrying amount is
recognised in the income statements.
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

2.

Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

(e) investment properties

{f

Investment properties principally comprise properties held for long term rental yields
or capital appreciation or both and which are not occupied by the Group and the
Bank. Investment property is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The policy for recognition and measurement of impairment is in
accordance with Note 2.2(h), below.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Freehold building is depreciated at an annual rate
of 2%, calculated on a straight line basis to write off the cost of each building over

the estimated useful life,

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The
carrying amount includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment
property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria is met and
excludes the cost of day-to-day servicing of that property.

Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the
retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognised in the income
statements in the year in which they arise.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured initially at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair values as at the
date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost
less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible asset are assessed to be either finite or infinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on straight line basis over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end. The amortisation expense on intangible asset with finite lives is
recognised in the income statements in the expense category consistent with the
function of the intangible asset.

Computer softwares were acquired separately and are amortised on a straight line
basis over the useful lives of 3 - 5 years.
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

2,

Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

(g) Leases

(i)

(i)

Classification

A lease is recognised as a finance lease if it transfers substantially to the Group
and the Bank all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. Leases of land
and building are classified as operating or finance leases in the same way as
leases of other assets and the land and buildings elements of a lease of land
and buildings are considered separately for the purposes of lease classification.
All leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards are
classified as operating leases, with the following exceptions:

- Property held under operating leases that would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property is classified as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis and, if classified as investment property, is
accounted for as if held under a finance lease; and

- Land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value of which
cannot be measured separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held under
a finance lease, unless the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. :

Finance lease - the Group as lessee

Assets acquired by way of hire purchase or finance leases are stated at an
amount equal to the lower of their fair values and the present value of the
minimum lease payments at the inception of the leases, less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. The corresponding liability is included in
the statement of financial position as borrowings. In calculating the present
value of the minimum lease payments, the discount factor used is the interest
rate implicit in the lease, when it is practical to determine; otherwise, the Bank’s
incremental borrowing rate is used. Any initial direct costs are also added to the
carrying amount of such assets.

Lease payments are apportioned between the finance costs and the reduction
of the outstanding liability. Finance costs, which represent the difference
between the total leasing commitments and the fair value of the assets
acquired, are recognised in the income statements over the term of the relevant
lease so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each accounting period.

The depreciation policy for leased assets is in accordance with that for
depreciable property, plant and equipment as described in Note 2.2(d).

41



16562-K

Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

(g) Leases {cont'd.)

(h)

(iii) Operating lease - the Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease. The aggregate henefit of incentives
provided by the lessor is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a sfraight-line basis.

In the case of a lease of land and buildings, the minimum lease payments or
the up-front payments made are allocated, whenéver necessary, between the
land and the buildings elements in proportion to the relative fair values for
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease. The up-front payment represents prepaid lease
payments and are amortised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(iv) Operating lease - the Group as lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are presented on the statements of
financial position according to the nature of the assets. Rental income from
operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group and the Bank assess at each reporting date whether there is an
indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when an
annual impairment assessment for an asset is required, the Group and the Bank
make an estimate of the asset's recoverabie amount.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to
sell and ifs value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units ("CGU")).
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
{incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

2.

Significant Accounting Policies {cont'd.)

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {cont'd.)

(h) Impairment of non-financial assets (cont'd.)

(i)

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated
by the asset are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is written down to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of a CGU or groups of CGUs are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to those units or groups
of units and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit or
groups of units on a pro-rata basis. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or
loss. ,

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication
that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount
since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increase cannot
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
had no impairment loss been recognised previously. Such reversal is recognised in
profit or loss. Impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in a subseguent period.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and subseduent measurement

Financial assets are recognised in the statements of financial position when, and
only when, the Group and the Bank become a party to the contractual provisions of
the financial instrument. :

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus,
in the case of financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group and the Bank determine the classification of their financial assets at
initial recognition, and the categories inciude financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss ("FVTPL"), loans/financing and receivables, financial investments -
held-to-maturity ("HTM") investments and financial investment - available-for-sale
("AFS").
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
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Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 {cont'd.)
2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)
2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

(1) Financial assets (cont'd.)

Inifial recognition and subsequent measurement (conf'd.)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the purpose
and the management's intention for which the financial assets were acquired and
their characteristics. The Group and the Bank determine the classification of
financial assets at initial recognition, in which the details are disclosed below.

Included in financial assets are the following :

{i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at FVTPL if they are held for
trading or are designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial assets held
for trading are derivatives (including separated embedded derivatives) or
financial assets acquired principally for the purpose of seiling in the near term.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair
value are recognised in the income statements. Net gains or net losses on
financial assets at FVTPL do not inciude exchange differences, interest and
dividend income. Exchange differences, interest and dividend income on
financial assets at FVTPL are recognised separately in the income statements
as part of other losses or other income.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets held-for-trading are
recognised on settlement date.

The Group and the Bank did not have any embedded derivatives during the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

+
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Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)
2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)
2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {cont'd.)
(i) Financial assets (cont'd.)

(ii} Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.

Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment. Interest income on loans and receivables is recognised as "interest
income" in the income statements. Impairment losses on loans and receivables
are recognised in the income statements as "allowances for impairment on
loans, advances and financing".

Loans stocks in organisations set up for socio-economic purposes which do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are classified as receivables.

(iii) Financing and receivables

Financing and receivables consist of Murabahah, Tawarrug, ljarah (includes
ljarah Muntahiyah bi Tamlik and ljarah Thummal Bai'), Istisna', Kafalah, Bai'
Bithaman Ajil and Bai' 'inah. These contracts, except for Kafalah, are
recognised at amortised cost, including direct and incremental transaction costs
using effective profit method. These contracts are stated at net of unearned
income and any amounts written off and/or impaired.

Definition of Shariah concept:

(8) Murabahah: It refers to a sale and purchase of an asset where the
acquisition cost and the mark-up are disclosed to the purchaser. The sale
price is payable by the purchaser usually on deferred terms.

(b) Tawarrug: It basically consists of two sale and purchase contracts. The first
involves the sale of an asset by a seller to a purchaser on a deferred basis.
Subsequently, the purchaser of the first sale will sell the same asset to a
third party on a cash and spot basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)
(i} Financial assets (cont'd.)

(iii) Financing and receivables {cont'd.)
Definition of Shariah concept (cont'd.):

(c) ljarah: It refers to a contract that transfers ownership of a permitted
usufruct andfor service for a specified period in exchange for a specified
consideration. It includes variations of this contract i.e. ljarah Muntahiyah
bi Tamiik and ljarah Thummal Bai', where it is accompanied with an option
to transfer the ownership of the leased asset to the lessee at the end of the
lease period via acceptable means of ownership transfer. For financial
reporting purpose the ljarah contract meets the definition of finance lease.

(d) Istisna’: It refers to a contract which a seller sells to a purchaser an asset
which is yet to be constructed, built or manufactured according to agreed
specifications and delivered on an agreed specified future date at an
agreed pre-determined sale price.

(e) Kafalah: It refers to a contract where the guarantor conjoins the
guaranteed party in assuming the latter’s specified liability for a specified
period.

(H Bai' Bithaman Ajil: It refers to a sale contract where the sale price is
deferred and paid gradually during the specified period.

(g) Bai' 'Inah: it refers to an arrangement that involves sale of an asset to the
purchaser on a deferred basis and subsequent purchase of the asset at a
cash price lower than the deferred sale price or vice versa, and which
complies with the specific requirements.

(iv) Financial investments - HTM

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity are classified as financial investments - HTM when the Group and the
Bank have the positive intention and ability to hold the investment to maturity.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial investments - HTM are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest/profit method, less impairment.
Interest/profit income on financial investments - HTM is recognised as "interest
income" or "profit income" in the income statements. Impairment losses on
financial investments - HTM are recognised in income statements as
“impairment on financial investments - HTM".

Regular way of purchases and sales of financial investments - HTM are
recognised on settlement date.
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2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

(i) Financial assets (cont'd.)

(v) Financial investment - AFS

Financial investments - AFS are financial assets that are designated as
available for sale or are not classified in any of the three preceding categories.
Financial investments - AFS include financiai assets that are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold in response to liquidity
needs or changes in market condition.

After initial recognition, AFS financial assets are measured at fair value. Any
gains or losses from changes in fair value of the financial asset are recognised
in OCI, except that impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses on
monetary instruments and interest calculated using the effective interest/profit
method are recognised in the income statements. The cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a
reclassification adjustment when the financial asset is derecognised.
Interest/profit income calculated using the effective interest/profit method is
recognised in the income statements. Dividends on ,an AFS equity instrument
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group's and the Bank's right to receive
payment is established.

If a financial investment - AFS is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss recognised in OCI is recognised in the income statements.

Regular way of purchases and sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period is generally established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace concerned.

Fair value determination

For financial instruments measured at fair value, the fair value is determined by
reference to quoted market prices or by using valuation models. The fair value of
financial instruments traded in active markets are based on quoted market price or
dealer price quotation. '

For all other financial assets, fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. In such cases, the fair values are estimated using discounted cash flow
models, based on observable data in respect of similar financial instruments and
using inputs (such as yield curve) existing at the reporting date.
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2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

(i) Financial assets (cont'd.)

)

Derecognition

Financial instruments are derecognised when the risks and rewards associated with
the instruments are substantially transferred, cancelled or expired. Upon
derecognition, the difference between the carrying amount of the instruments and
the consideration received/paid, less the cumulative gain or loss that has been
recognised in the equity are taken to the income statements.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group and the Bank assess at each statements of financial position date
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be
impaired if, and only if, there is an objective evidence of impairment as a result of
one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an
incurred "loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the borrower or a group of
borrowers is experiencing significant financial difficulty, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments and where observable data indicates that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

The impairment policies on the financial assets are summarised as follows:
(i) Loans and receivables

Classification of impaired loans, advances and financing

The Group and the Bank classify a loan, advance or financing as impaired
when there is objective evidence that the loan is impaired. In addition, the
Group and the Bank also comply with Bank Negara Malaysia's Guidelines on
Classification and Impairment Provision for Loans/Financing which states that,
based on repayment conduct, a loan or financing should be classified as
impaired (see next page).
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(i) Impairment of financial assets (cont'd.)

(i} Loans and receivables {cont'd.)

Classification of impaired loans, advances and financing {cont'd.)

- Where the principal or interest/profit or both is past due more than 90 days
or 3 months. In the case of revolving facilities, the facility shall be classified
as impaired where the outstanding amount remains in excess of the
approved limit for a period of more than 90 days or 3 months,

Declassification of an impaired account shall be supported by a credit
assessment of the repayment capabilities, cash flow and financial position of
the borrower.

impairment - individual allowance ("IA")

The Group and the Bank first assess individually whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for loans, advances: and financing that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group and the Bank determine that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with simitar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to
be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is an objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the income statements. Where appropriate, the
calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a
collateralised loans or receivable reflect the cash flows that may result from
foreclosure less costs of obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not
foreclosure is probable. Interest/profit income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest/profit used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. The interest/profit income is recorded as part of ‘interest/profit income’ in
the income statements.
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() Impairment of financial assets (cont'd.)

(i) Loans and receivables {cont'd.)

impairment - collective allowance ("CA")

Loans, advances and financing and receivables that have been assessed
individually and found not to be impaired are then assessed coilectively, to
determine whether allowance should be made due to incurred loss events for
which there is objective evidence but whose effects are not yet evident.

As allowed by MFRS 139 in deriving the CA estimates, the Bank makes
reference to the publicly available data particularly relating to Probability of
Default ("PD") and Loss Given Default ("LGD") estimates as benchmarks.
These estimates are mapped and calibrated to the Bank's loan, advances and
financing portfolios using equivalent and comparable credit rating as
references. The derived PD and LGD are then adjusted by management to
reflect the effects of current conditions.

Impairment - write-off accounts

Loans together with the associated allowance are written-off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has
been transferred to the Group and the Bank. If, in a subsequent year, the
amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If
a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the income

statements.
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(i) Impairment of financial assets {cont'd.)

(i) Financial investments - HTM

The Group and the Bank assess at each reporting date whether objective
evidence of impairment of financial investments - HTM exists as a result of one
or more loss events and that loss event has an impact on the estimated future
cash fiows of the financial investment or group of financial investments that can
be reliably estimated.

Where there is objective evidence of impairment, an impairment loss is
recognised as the difference between the amortised cost and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows, less any impairment previously recognised.

(iii) Financial investments - AFS

The Group and the Bank assess at each reporting date whether an objective
evidence that financials investment classified as AFS i impaired.

In the case of quoted investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is also considered in determining whether
objective evidence of impairment exists. Where such evidence exists, the
cumulative loss (measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less impairment loss previously recognised) is removed
from equity and recognised in the income statements. For unquoted equity
investments which are measured at cost, the amount of impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the
present value of estimated future cash flow discounted at the current rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses recognised in the income
statements on equity investments are not reversed through the income
statements. '

For debt instruments, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as
other AFS financial investments. Where impairment losses have been
previously recognised in the income statements and there is a subsequent
increase in the fair value of the debt instruments that can be objectively related
to a credit event occurring after the impairment loan was recognised in the
income statements, the impairment loss is reversed through income
statements.
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Significant Accounting Policies {cont'd.)

2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

(k) Financial liabilities

)

Financial liabilities are classified according to the' substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability.

Financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial position when, and
only when, the Group and the Bank become a party to the contractual provisions of
the financial instrument.

Financial liabilities are recognised at amortised cost. Financial liabilities measured
at amortised cost include deposits from customers, debt securities issued and other
borrowed funds.

Bills and acceptance payable

Bills and acceptance payable represents the Bank's own bills and acceptances
rediscounted and outstanding in the market. These financial liabilities are stated at

amortised cost.

(m) Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the Group and the Bank after deducting all of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are

equity instruments.

Ordinary shares are recorded at the proceeds received, net of directly attributable
incremental transaction costs. Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends
on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are declared.
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2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

(n) Employee benefits

(o)

{p)

Short term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid
annual leave and sick leave are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided.

A provision is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short term cash
bonus if the Group and the Bank have a present legal or constructive obligation to
pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

The Group's and the Bank's contribution to the Employees Provident Fund are
charged to the income statements in the year to which they relate. Once the
contributions have been paid, the Group and the Bank have no further payment

obligations.
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value in the statements of financial
position where there is a reasonable assurance that the grants will be recsived and
all attaching conditions will be complied with. The Government grants are presented
in the statements of financial position as “infrastructure support fund” ("ISF") and
“deferred income”.

ISF relates to fund received from the Government to cover the potential risk of
loan/financing default, any allowance for impaiment losses, write-off and other
liquidity requirements that may arise. lt is also to cover the contingent liabilities of
Bank i.e guarantees, standby credits and performance bonds.

Deferred income comprises claims received in relation to profit rate differentials on
financing of Government infrastructure project.

Grants that compensate the Group and the Bank for expenses incurred are
recognised as income over the period necessary to match the grants on a
systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group and the Bank have a present obligation
as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of
the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd.)

(p) Provisions {cont'd.)

Where the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted
using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage
of time is recognised as finance cost.

{q9) Contingent liabilities

(r)

Contingent liabilities consist of secured guarantees given to third parties on behalf
of borrowers. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the notes to the accounts, unless
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the cbligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Disposal groups, assets held for sale and discontinued operation

Non-financial assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale fransaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is
highly probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in
its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the measurement of the non-
current assets (or all the assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-to-
date in accordance with applicable MFRSs. Then, on initial classification as held for
sale, non-financial assets or disposal groups (other than investment properties,
deferred tax assets, employee benefits assets and financial assets) are measured
in accordance with MFRS &: Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations; that is at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
Any differences are included in the income statements. .

A component of the Group is classified as a discontinued operation when the
criteria to be classified as held for sale have been met or it has been disposed and
such a component represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, is part of a single co-ordinated major line of business or
geographical area of operations or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view
to resell.
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2.2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {cont'd.}

(s} Revenue

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the Bank and the revenue can be reliably measured.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.

(i)

(ii)

Interest/profit and similar income

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost, interest/profit bearing
financial assets classified as AFS and financial instruments designated at
FVTPL, interest/profit income is recorded using the effective interest/profit rate,
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. The calculation
takes into account all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example,
repayment options) and includes any fees or incremental costs that are directly
attributable to the instrument and are an integral part of the effective
interest/profit rate, but not future credit losses.

For impaired financial assets where the value of the financial asset have been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest/profit income continues
to be recognised using the rate of interest/profit used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Islamic income recognition

Income from financing and receivables is recognised in the income statements
using the effective profit method. The effective profit rate is the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability to the carrying amount of the
financial asset or liability. The calculation of the effective profit rate includes all
contractual terms of the financial instruments and includes any fees
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instruments and are an
integral part of the effective profit rate.

Sale-based Financing (Murabahah, Tawarruq, Istisna’, Bai' Bithaman Ajil
and Bai' 'Inah)

Income are accrued on monthly basis on the cost outstanding at the prevailing
effective profit rate over the duration of the financing.
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(s) Revenue {cont'd.)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Islamic income recognition {(cont'd.)

Lease-based Financing (ljarah, ljarah Muntahiyah bi Tamlik and ljarah
Thummal Bai')

ljarah income is recognised on the effective profit rate of the cost of the leased
asset over the leased period.

Fee income

Fee-based income from charging administrative fees such processing fee,
arrangement fee, facility fee and upfront fee is recognised on an accrual basis.
Fee-based income is also derived from provision of guarantee based on
kafalah contract.

Income recognition for leasing, hire purchase financing, pre-factoring and
factoring

Income earned on leasing and hire purchase confirming and factoring financing
is recognised based on the effective interest/profit method.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the Group's right to receive payment is
established.

Charter hire income

Charter hire fees are accounted for on accrual basis.

(f) Income Taxes

(i)

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively

enacted by the reporting date.
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(t} Income Taxes (cont'd.)

(i)

(if)

Current tax {(cont'd.)

Current taxes are recognised in the income statements except to the extent
that the tax relates to items recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at
the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, except:

+  where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of transaction, affect neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

* in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controfled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future, and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or the liabifity is settied,
based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially
enacted at the reporting date.
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(t) Income Taxes (cont'd.)

{(ii) Deferred tax {(cont'd.)

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the income statements is
recognised outside the income statements. Deferred tax items are recognised
in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity and deferred tax arising from a business
combination is adjusted against goodwiil on acquisition.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

(u) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, bank balances and deposit
placements with original maturity less than one month held for the purpose of
meeting short term commitments and readily convertible into cash without
significant risk of changes in value.

2.3 Changes in Accounting Policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year
except as follows:

On 1.January 2016, the Group and the Bank adopted the following new and amended
MFRSs and IC Interpretation mandatory for annual financial periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016.

Effective for

annual period

beginning on

Description or after

Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle 1 January 2016

Amendments to MFRS 116 and MFRS 138: Clarification of Acceptable 1 January 2016
Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

Amendments to MFRS 116 and MFRS 141: Agriculture: Bearer Plants 1 January 2016

Amendments to MFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests 1 January 2016
in Joint Operations

Amendments to MFRS 127: Equity Method in Separate Financial 1 January 2016
Statements
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Effective for
annual period
beginning on

Description or after

Amendhents to MFRS 101: Disclosure Initiatives 1 January 2016

Amendments to MFRS 10, MFRS 12 and MFRS 128: 1 January 2016
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

MFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts - 1 January 2016

The adoption of the above standards and interpretations did not have any significant
effect on the financial performance and position of the Group and of the Bank.

i

2.4 Standards Issued but not yet Effective

The standards and interpretations that are issued but not yet effective up to the date of -
issuance of the Group's and the Bank's financial statements are disclosed below. The
Group and the Bank intend to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become

effective.
Effective for
annual period
beginning on
Description or after
MFRS 107 Disclosures Initiatives (Amendments to MFRS 107) 1 January 2017
MFRS 112 Recognition of Deferred Tax for Unrealised Losses 1 January 2017

(Amendments to MFRS 112)
MFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment 1 January 2018
Transactions (Amendments to MFRS 2)

MFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018
MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018
MFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
Amendments to MFRS 10 and MFRS 128: Sale or Contribution of Deferred

Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
The directors expect that the adoption of the above standards and interpretations wiil

have no material impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application
except as discussed in the next page.
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MFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In November 2014, MASB issued the final version of MFRS 9 Financial Instruments
which reflects all phases of the financial instruments project and replaces MFRS 139
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all previous versions of
MFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for classification and
measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. MFRS 9 is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early application permitted.
Retrospective application is required, but comparative information is not compulsory.
The adoption of MFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification and measurement of
the Group's financial assets, but no impact on the classification and measurement of
the Group's financial liabilities.

(i) Classification and measurement

MFRS 9 has three measurement categories - amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income and fair value through profit or loss. The basis of
classification depends on the entity's business model and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset. Investment in equity instruments is required to
be measured at fair value through profit or loss with the irrevocable option at
inception to present changes in fair value in other comprehensive income. All equity
instruments are measured at fair value. A debt instrument is measured at amortised
cost only if the entity is holding it to collect contractual cash flows and the cash
flows represent principal and interest/profit. For financial liabilities, the standard
retains most of the MFRS 139 requirements. These include amortised cost
accounting for most financial liabilities, with bifurcation of embedded derivatives.
The main change is that, in cases where the fair value option is taken for financial
liabilities, the fair value change due to an entity’s own credit risk is recorded in other
comprehensive income rather than the statement of profit or loss, unless this
creates an accounting mismatch.

(ii) Impairment

The impairment requirements apply to financial assets measured at amotrtised cost
and fair value through other comprehensive income and certain loan commitments
as weli as financial guarantee contracts. At initial recognition, allowance for
impairment is required for expected credit losses ("ECL"). In the event of a
significant increase in credit risk, allowance for impairment is required for ECL
resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial
instrument. The assessment of credit risk, as well as the estimation of ECL, are
required to be unbiased, probability-weighted and should incorporate all available
information which is relevant to the assessment, including information about past
events, current conditions and reasonable and supportable forecasts of future
events and economic conditions at the reporting date.
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MFRS 9 Financial Instruments (cont'd.)
(iii Hedge af:counting

The requirements per general hedge accounting have been simplified for hedge
effectiveness testing and may result in more designation of hedged items for
accounting purposes.

MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group is currently assessing the impact of MFRS 15 and plans to adopt the new
standard on the required effective date.

MFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from
contracts with customers. MFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including MFRS 118 Revenue, MFRS 111 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of MFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue which depict
the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services.

Under MFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as} a performance obligation is
satisfied, i.e when “control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

Either a full or modified retrospective application is required for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early adoption permitted.

MFRS 16 Leases

MFRS 16 will replace MFRS 117 Leases, IC Interpretation 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, IC Interpretation 115 Operating Lease-Incentives and
IC Interpretation 127 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease. MFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases
under a single on-balance sheet model similar fo the accounting for finance leases
under MFRS 117.
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24

Standards Issued but not yet Effective (cont'd.)

MFRS 16 Leases (cont'd.)

At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease
payments and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the
lease term. Lessees will be required to recognise interest expense on the lease liability
and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under MFRS 16 is substantially the same as the accounting under
MFRS 117. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification
principle as in MFRS 117 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and

finance leases.

MFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early
application is permitted but not before an entity applies MFRS 15. A lessee can choose
to apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach. The Group plans to assess the potential effect of MFRS 16 on its financial

statements in year 2017.

Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements involved making certain estimates, assumptions
and that affect the accounting policies applied and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the financial statements in the period in which the estimate is
revised and in any future periods affected. Significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and
critical judgements used in applying accounting policies that have significant effect on the
amount recognised in the financial statements include the following:

3.1

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group's and the Bank's accounting policies, management
has made the following judgments which has the most significant effect and the
amounts recognised in the financial statements.

(a) Impairment of financial investments portfolio (Note 6, Note 7 and Note 36)
The Group and the Bank review the financial investments portfolio of financial
investments - AFS and HTM at each reporting date io assess whether there is any

objective evidence that the investment is impaired. If there are indicators or
objective evidence, the investments are subject to impairment review.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates (cont'd.)

3.1 Judgments (cont'd.)

(a} Impairment of financial investments portfolio (Note 6, Note 7 and Note 36)

(b)

(c)

(cont'd.)

In carrying out the impairment review, the following management’'s judgment are
required:

(i) Determination whether the investment is impaired based on certain indicators
such as, amongst others, prolonged decline in fair value, significant financial
difficulties of the issuer or obligors, the disappearance of an active trading
market and deterioration of the credit quality of the issuers or obligors; and

(i) Determination of “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgment and
management evaluation on various factors, such as historical fair value
movement, the duration and extent of reduction in fair value.

Impairment of loans, advances and financing (Note 8 and Note 35)

The Group and the Bank assess at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a loan is impaired. Loans and advances that are
individually significant are assessed individually. Those not individually significant
are grouped together based on similar credit risks and assessed as a portfolio. .

Impairment of investment in subsidiaries (Note 10), interest in associates
(Note 11) and JVs (Note 12)

The Group and the Bank assess whether there is any indication that an investment
in subsidiaries, interest in associates and JVs may be impaired at each reporting
date.

if indicators are present, these investments are subjected to impairment review
which comprises a comparison of the carrying amount of the investment and the
investment's estimated recoverable amount.

Judgments made by management in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies in respect of investment in subsidiaries, interest in an associates
and JVs are as follows:

() The Group and the Bank determine whether its investments are impaired
following certain indications of impairment such as, amongst others, prolonged
shortfall between market value and carrying amount, significant changes with
adverse effects on the investment and deteriorating financiai performance of
the investment due to observed changes and in the economic environment: and
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3. Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates (cont'd.)

3.1

3.2

Judgments (cont'd.)

(c} Impairment of investment in subsidiaries (Note 10), interest in associates
(Note 11) and JVs (Note 12) (cont'd.)

Judgments made by management in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies in respect of investment in subsidiaries, interest in an associates
and JVs are as follows: (cont'd.)

(i) Depending on their nature and the location in which the investments relate to,
judgments are made by management to select suitable methods of valuation
such as, amongst others, discounted future cash flows or estimated fair value
based on quoted market price of the most recent transactions.

{d} Impairment of vessels (Note 13, Note 36 and Note 44)

The Group and the Bank assess whether there is any indication that the vessels
may be impaired at each reporting date. If indicators are present, these assets are
subject to an impairment review. The impairment review comprises a comparison of
the carrying amount of the assets and the assets' recoverable amount.

Estimates

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the financial statements in the period in which
the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. Significant areas of
estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments used in applying accounting policies that
have significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements include the
following:

(a2) Allowance for impairment of loans, advances and financing (Note 8 and Note
35)

Management makes certain assumptions to estimate the recoverable amount of the
loans, advances and financing once a suitable method of valuation is selected.

Amongst factors considered are the Group’s and the Bank’s aggregate exposure to
the borrower, the net realisable value of the underlying collateral value, the viability
of the customer’s business model and the capacity to generate sufficient cash flow
to service debt obligations and the aggregate amount and ranking of all other
creditor claims. The actual amount of the future cash flows and their timing may
differ from the estimates used by management and consequently may cause actual
losses to differ from the impairment made.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates (cont'd.)

3.2 Estimates (cont'd.)

(a) Aliowance for impairment of loans, advances and financing (Note 8 and Note

35) (cont'd.)

Collective assessment is performed on loans, advances and financing which the
Group and the Bank have determined that no objective evidence of impairment
exists based on individual assessment. These loans, advances and financing are
then assessed collectively, to determine whether allowance should be made due to
incurred loss events for which there is objective evidence but whose effects are not
yet evident.

In deriving the collective allowance estimates, the Bank makes reference to the
publicly available data particularly relating to Probability of Default ("PD") and Loss
Given Default ("LGD") as benchmarks. The derived PD and LGD are then adjusted
for by the management where deemed necessary.

For the subsidiaries involved in leasing and factoring business, future cash flows in
a group of loans, advances and financing that are collectively evaluated for
impairment are estimated based on the historical loss experience of those of the
subsidiaries. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current
observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the
period during on which the historical loss experience is based on and to remove the
effects of conditions in the historical period that do not currently exist.

(b) Allowance for impairment of financial investments portfolio (Note 6 and Note

7)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred for financial
investments - HTM, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount and the present value of the estimated cash flows discounted
at the original effective yield of the securities.

For financial investments - AFS, when there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss (which is measured as the difference between the acquisition cost
and the current fair value, less any accumulated impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the income statements) that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to income statements. Impairment
losses on equity investments are not reversed through the income statements;
increases in the fair value after impairment are recognised in other comprehensive

income.

For quoted equity securities, its impairment losses are not reversed subsequent to
its recognition until such equities are disposed.
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3. Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates (cont'd.)

3.2 Estimates (cont'd.)

(b) Allowance for impairment of financial investments portfolio (Note 6 and Note

(c)

(d)

7) (cont'd.)

In the case of debt instruments classified as financial investments AFS, the
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial investments HTM.
However, the amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as
the difference between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
accumulated impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
income statements.

Fair value estimation of financial investments - AFS (Note 6)

The fair value of securities that are not traded in an active market are determined
using valuation techniques based on assumptions of market conditions existing at
the reporting date, including reference to quoted market prices and independent
dealer quotes for similar securities and discounted cash flows method.

Allowance for impairment of investment in subsidiaries (Note 10), interest in
associates (Note 11) and JVs (Note 12)

Once "a suitable method of valuation is selected, management makes certain
assumptions concerning the future to estimate the recoverable amount of the
specific individual investment. These assumptions and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the investments within the next
financial year. Depending on the specific individual investment, assumptions made
by management may include, amongst others, assumptions on expected future
cash fiows, revenue growth, terminal value, discount rate used for purposes of
discounting future cash flows which incorporates the relevant risks and expected
future outcome based on certain past trends.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

Management believes that no reasonably expected possible change in the key
assumptions described above would cause the carrying amounts of the investments
to materially exceed their recoverable amounts.
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3.2 Estimates (cont'd.}
(e) Allowance for impairment of vessels (Note 13, Note 36 and Note 44)

An asset's recoverable amount RA is the higher of the asset's value-in-use ("VIU")
amount and fair value less costs to sell ("FVLCTS"). Estimating a VIU amount
requires management to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from
vessels and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate to present
value of those cash flows. The FVLCTS of the assets are determined by an
independent professional valuer. The valuer has utilised market approach in valuing

(f} Deferred tax (Note 17) and Income taxes (Note 37)

Significant judgment is required in estimating the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and interpretations of tax law for which the final outcome will
not be established until some time later. Liabilities for taxation are recognised based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be payable. The estimation process
includes seeking advice on the tax treatments where appropriate. Where the final
liability for taxation is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, the
differences will affect the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which the estimate is revised or the final liability is established.

Deferred tax assets are recognised in respect of tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits,
together with future tax planning strategies.

4. Cash and Short Term Deposits

Group - Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM’000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Cash and balances with other
financial institutions 23,357 35,381 7,840 2,698
Money at call and deposit -

placements maturing within
one month 1,272,142 1,384,144 1,020,428 1,123,512

1,285,499 1,419,525 1,028,268 1,126,210
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5. Deposits and Placements with Financial Institutions

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Licensed banks - 51,672 - -
6. Financial Investments - AFS
Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
At fair value
Money market instruments:
Government investment
issues 1,305,405 872,906 1,305,405 872,906
Quoted securities:
(In Malaysia) _
Shares 133,205 152,548 129,682 148,077
Unit trust funds 201,073 201,199 201,073 201,199
334,278 353,747 330,755 349,276
Unquoted securities:
(in Malaysia)
Loan stock, at cost - 727 - 727
Private debt securities 2,057,802 871,683 2,057,802 871,683
2,057,802 872,410 2,057,802 872,410

3,697,485 2,099,063 3,693,962 2,094 592
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7. Financial Investments - HTM

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
At amortised cost
Money market instruments:
Cagamas 5,037 5,036 5,037 5,036
Unquoted securities:
(In Malaysia)
Private debt securities 527,365 500,832 527,365 500,832
Loan stock 22 22 - -
527,387 500,854 527,365 500,832
Less: Accumulated
impairment [osses (346,680) (321,401) (346,680) (321,401}
180,707 179,453 180,685 179,431
- 185,744 184,489 185,722 184,467
Indicative market values of the financial investments - HTM are as follows:
Group and Bank
2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
Cagamas 5,029 5,066
Unquoted private debt
securities 248,204 221,664
The movements of the accumulated impairment losses are as follows:
Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
At 1 January 321,401 300,235 321,401 300,235
Provision during the
financial year (Note 36) 25,279 21,166 25,279 21,166
At 31 December 346,880 321,401 346,680 321,401
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Loans, Advances and Financing

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Loans, advances and financing
to industries:
Government guaranteed 4,342 616 5,532,712 4,342,616 5,632,712
Others 19,772,635 19,537,708 19,482,873 19,215,784
24,115,251 25,070,420 23,825,589 24,748,496
Loans, advances and financing
to others:
Staff financing 8,562 10,313 8,562 10,313
Loan to subsidiaries - - - 86,030
8,562 10,313 8,562 96,343
Gross loans, advances and
financing 24,123,813 25,080,733 23,834,151 24 844 839
Allowance for impairment on loans,
advances and financing:
Individual allowance (2,238,529) (1,426,339) (2,163,480)  (1,352,430)
Collective allowance (675,201} (897,045) (664,573) (919,953)
(2,9013,730) (2,323,384) (2,828,053) (2,272,383)
Net loans, advances and
financing 21,210,083 22,757,349 21,006,098 22,572,456
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8. Loans, Advances and Financing (cont'd.)

(i) Loans, advances and financing analysed by type are as follows:

Bai' Bithaman Ajil
Bai' 'inah
Bridging financing
Factoring

Hire purchase
Istisna'

ljarah

ljarah Muntahiyah bi Tamlik

Infra support loan
Leasing
Murabahah
Revolving financing

Revolving working capital

Staff financing

Tawarruq

Term loan

Working capital

Gross loans, advances
and financing

Allowance for impairment

on loans, advances and

financing:

Individual aliowance

Collective allowance
Net loans, advances and

financing

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
203,699 306,160 195,342 291,788
52,009 74,049 52,009 74,049
15,869 18,894 13,456 12,421
60,078 44,432 - -
144,047 151,565 - -
3,997,381 5,446,683 3,997,381 5,456,490
56,663 64,786 20,625 19,346
104,293 102,104 104,293 102,104
- 20,273 - 29,273
22,745 37,812 - -
26,778 53,715 25,778 63,715
2,546 4,762 - -
253,146 373,292 253,146 373,292
8,562 10,313 8,562 10,313
4,685,853 1,036,178 4,676,970 1,022,199
14,491,144 17,326,260 14,486,589 17,399,394
- 455 - 455
24,123,813 25,080,733 23,834,151 24,844,839
(2,238,529)  (1,426,339) (2,163,480)  (1,352,430)
(675,201} (897,045) (664,573) (919,053)
21,210,083 22,757,349 21,006,098 22,572,456
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8. Loans, Advances and Financing (cont'd.)

(i) Loans, advances and financing analysed by type of customers are as follows:

Domestic business
enterprises
Individuals

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RN'000 RM'000 RM'000
24115251 25,070,420 23,825,589 24,834,526
8,662 10,313 8,562 10,313
24,123,813 25,080,733 23,834,151 24,844,839

(iiy Loans, advances and financing analysed by interest/profit rate sensitivity are as follows:

Fixed rate:
Housing loans/financing
Hire purchase
receivables
Other fixed rate loans/
financing
Variable rate:
Cost plus
Other variable rates

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
16,919 21,303 8,562 10,313
144,047 162,819 - -
15,196,777 14,078,585 15,059,519 14,016,500
3,100,511 2,507,152 3,100,511 2,507,152
5,665,559 8,310,874 5,665,659 8,310,874
24,123,813 25,080,733 23,834,151 24,844,839
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8. Loans, Advances and Financing {cont'd.)

(iv) Loans, advances and financing analysed by industry are as follows:

Agriculture, hunting and
forestry

Construction

Education

Electricity, gas and
water supply

Finance, insurance and
business

Hote! and restaurants

Housing

Manufacturing

Marine related

Materials technology

Medical and
pharmaceuticals

Mining and quarrying

Other community, socia!

and personal service
activities

Production engineering

Public administration and
defence

Real estate, renting and
business activities

Shipping

Shipyard

Transport, storage and
communication

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RNM'000 RM'000
5,756 6,997 - T
11,019,192 11,631,521 10,993,823 11,520,391
2,048,551 1,876,913 2,046,551 1,876,913
2,252,403 2,326,972 2,252,091 2,326,660
65,335 23,812 - -
1,408,715 1,263,526 1,408,715 1,263,526
8,562 10,313 8,562 10,313
552,400 543,639 538,971 474,015
84,378 99,186 84,378 99,186
14,840 14,234 14,840 14,234
43,371 41,917 43,371 41,917
433 1,422 - -
208,605 201,090 205,403 149,335
38,308 45,268 38,308 45,268
592,730 963,547 489,596 884,704
1,434,745 1,552,401 1,434,745 1,638,431
201,369 193,748 201,369 193,748
4,146,120 4,384,227 4,073,428 4,306,198
24 123,813 25,080,733 23,834,151 24 844,839
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8. Loans, Advances and Financing (cont'd.)

(v} The maturity structure of lcans, advances and financing is as follows:

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RN'000 RM'000
Maturity within one year 4,508,249 4,925,097 4,480,690 4,901,056
One year to three years 5,169,757 4,995,772 5,028,630 4,920,670
Three years to five years 2,523,188 3,649,022 2,422,710 3,496,718
Over five years 11,932,619 11,510,842 11,902,121 11,526,394
24,123,813 25,080,733 23,834,151 24,844,839

(vi} Loans, advances and financing analysed by geographical distribution are as follows:

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RNM'000 RM'000
Within Malaysia 24,123,813 25,080,733 23,834,151 24 844 839
(vii) Movements in impaired loans, advances and financing are as follows:
Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
At 1 January 2,794,395 3,000,149 2,796,826 2,950,738
Impaired during the
financial year 1,468,056 688,169 1,324,965 660,068
Reclassified as non-
impaired (17,817) (38,546) - (36,982)
Recovered during the
financial year (508,180) (114,529) (467,084) (65,255)
Amount written off (113,330) (740,848) (113,330) (711,743)
At 31 December 3,623,124 2,794,395 3,541,377 2,796,826
Gross impaired loans as
a % of gross loans,
advances and financing 15.02% 11.14% 14.86% 11.26%
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8. Loans, Advances and Financing (cont'd.)

(viii) Impaired loans, advances and financing analysed by industry are as follows:

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Construction 453,960 315,216 447,170 312,162
Education 77,551 76,853 77,551 76,853
Electricity, gas and water
supply 118,783 111,166 118,783 111,166
Finance, insurance and
business 2,641 550 - -
Hotel and restaurants 484,304 446,259 474,029 432,520
Manufacturing 361,988 359,076 339,415 326,627
Marine related 84,378 98,732 84,378 98,732
Materials technology 14,841 14,234 14,841 14,234
Medical and
pharmaceuticals 43,371 41,917 43,371 41,917
Other community, social
and personal service
activities 8,809 15,996 - -
Real estate, renting and
business activities 5,731 369,577 - 351,766
Shipping 1,339,807 722,210 1,339,807 808,240
Shipyard 639 14,660 - 14,660
Transport, storage and
communication 626,321 207,549 602,032 207,949
3,623,124 2,794,395 3,541,377 2,796,826
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8. Loans, Advances and Financing (cont'd.)

(ix) Movements in the allowance for impairment of loans, advances and financing are as

follows:
Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Individual allowance ("IA")
At 1 January 1,426,339 1,957,260 1,362,430 1,842,562
Allowance made during
the financial year 707,561 230,197 678,314 206,161
Allowance made during
the year against ISF 9,334 11,060 9,334 11,060
Amount written back in
respect of recoveries (115,905) (75,853) (95,771) (37,937)
Amount transferred from '
from CA 350,922 64,260 350,922 64,260
Amount transferred to CA (22,317) (21,933) (22,317) (21,933)
Amount written off (117,405) (738,652) (109,432) (711,743)
At 31 December 2,238,529 1,426,339 2,163,480 1,352,430
Collective allowance ("CA")
At 1 January 897,045 681,860 919,953 699,397
Allowance made during
the financial year 111,946 272,260 73,232 272,356
Allowance made during
the year against ISF (7) - (7) -
Amount written back (5,178) (14,748) - (9,473)
Amount transferred to 1A (350,922) (64,260) (350,922) (64,260)
Amount transferred
from IA 22,317 21,933 22,317 21,933
At 31 December - 675,201 897,045 664,573 919,953
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8. Other Assets

Group Bank
Note 2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Sundry receivabies,
deposits and
prepayments (i) 361,424 93,830 40,643 12,005
Less: Allowance for
doubtful debts (i) (215,421) (23,364) (601) (706)
146,003 70,466 40,042 11,299
Amount due from subsidiaries - - 726 1,603
Amount receivable
from Government
in respect of
compensation for:
Infrastructure projects 46,819 46,956 48,819 46,956
Foreign exchange
differences 85,361 85,361 85,361 85,361
Tax recoverable 40,257 28,185 35,160 22,780
318,440 230,968 208,108 167,999

(i) Included in the sundry receivables, deposits and prepayments of the Group is an
amount due from Syarikat Borcos Shipping Sdn Bhd ("Borcos"), a former subsidiary of
Global Maritime Ventures Berhad ("GMVB") amounting to RM290,179,000. Due to the
deconsolidation of Borcos, as disclosed in Note 10(b), the amount due from Borcos is
now treated as sundry receivables due from third party.

(i) Allowance for doubtful debts

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
At 1 January 23,364 7,624 706 1,035
Provided during the
financial year: )
- Trade receivables - 12,498 - -
- Associates - 457 - -
Impairment on amount
due from discontinued
operation 210,781 - - -
Recovered during the
financial year (18,651) (329) (32) (329)
Exchange differences - 3,114 - -
Amount written off (73) - (73) -
At 31 December 215,421 23,364 601 706
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10. Investments in Subsidiaries

Bank
2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
Unquoted shares, at cost 924,686 924,686
Additional capital contribution due to waiver of debt 68,750 68,750
993,436 993,436
Less: Allowance for impairment on investments in
subsidiaries (603,749 (512,577)
389,687 480,859
Less: Transfer to subsidiary classified as held for
sale, net of impairment allowance (Note 10(c)) (636) -
389,051 480,859
Movement of allowance for impairment:
As at 1 January 512,577 339,693
Amount provided during the year 91,172 172,884
At 31 December 603,749 512,577

(a) Subsidiary with significant non-controlling interest

The summarised financial information of Global Maritime Ventures Berhad ("GMVB")
which have significant non-controlling interests to the Group is set out below. The
summarised financial information presented below is the amount before inter-company

elimination:

(iy Summarised statement of financial position

GMVB

2016 2015

RM'000 RM'000

Non current assets 30,024 40,198
Current assets 225,034 673,721
Total assets 255,058 713,919
Non current liabilities - 71
Current liabilities 3,821 359,218
Total liabilities 3,821 359,289
Net assets 251,237 354,630
Equity attributable to the owners of the company 243813 345116
Carrying value of non-conirolling interests 7,424 9,514
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{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)
10. Investments in Subsidiaries (cont'd.)
(a) Subsidiary with significant non-controlling interest (cont'd.)

(i) Summarised statement of comprehensive income

GNMVB
2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
Continuing operations:
Revenue - 121
Cost of sales - (359)
Other income 17,321 14,533
Administrative expenses (7,903) (52,040)
Finance costs (4) 3)
Share of loss of joint ventures and ‘
associates (5,880) (9,235)
Profit/(loss) before taxation 3,524 (46,983)
fncome tax (6,4186) (5,957)
Zakat , {1,050) (16)
Loss for the financial year ' (3,932) (52,956)
Discontinued operations:
Gain on deconsolidation of discontinued
operations 440,370 -
Impairment on amount due from discontinued 7
operations (210,781) -
Loss from discontinued operations (119,746) (275,946)
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax 109,843 (275,946)
Net profit/(loss) for the year 105,911 (328,902)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income to be
reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Exchange difference on
transiation of foreign operations
- transferred to profit or loss (215,292) -
- translation during the year 5,088 122 911
' (209,304) 122,911
Total comprehensive loss for the
financial year (103,393) (205,291)
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
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Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

10. Investments in Subsidiaries (cont'd.)

(a) Subsidiary with significant non-controlling interest (cont'd.)

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interest

Total comprehensive loss attributable to the
owners of the company

Total comprehensive (loss)/profit attributable
to the non-controlling interests

(i) Summarised statement of cash flows

Net cash used in operating activities

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Effects of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
financial year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
financial year

(b) Creditors Voluntary Liquidation

80

GMVB
2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
106,031 (328,772)
(120) (130)
105,911 (328,902)
(101,303) (207,380)
(2,090) 1,389
(103,393) (205,991)

GMVB

2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
(72,048) (6,111)
(3,064) (9,618)
(23,218) (182,489)
(98,330) (198,218)
328 38
209,987 408,167
111,985 209,987

On 22 December 2016, Borcos was placed under Creditors Voluntary Liquidation
("CVL") and the Group has lost control over Borcos and its subsidiaries ("Borcos
Group"). As a result, Borcos Group's assets and liabilities have been deconsolidated
from the Group's consolidated financial statements and its results are presented
separately in the income statements as "Discontinued operations”.
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)
10. Investments in Subsidiaries (cont'd.)
(b) Creditors Voluntary Liquidation (cont'd.)

Details of the financial position of Borcos Group on the date of the deconsolidation were

as follows:

Total
Assets RM'000
Asset held for sale 304,507
Cash and bank balances 7,397
Trade and other receivables 838
Amount due to holding company 64
Tax recoverable 45
312,851
Liabilities
Borrowings (228,845)
Trade and other payables (308,954)
Deferred tax liabilities (4)
(5637,803)
Net liabilities {224,952)
At the date of
deconsolidation
RM'000
Net identifiable liabilities disposed 224 952
Reclassification of foreign exchange reserve to profit or loss 215,202
Transfer from non-controlling interest 126
Gain on deconsolidation 440,370
The effect of the deconsolidation on cash flow is as follows:
Cash and bank balances of Borcos (7,397)
_Cash outflow to the Group on deconsolidation (7,397)
included in results from operating activities are:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 30,644
Amortisation of intangible assets 15,511
Impairment allowance for vessels 200,974
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 {cont'd.)
10. Investments in Subsidiaries (cont'd.)
(c) Disposal of a subsidiary

On 23 November 2016, the Bank has accepted the offer from Intrasys Sdn Bhd, to
acquire the Bank's interest in Pembangunan Ekuiti Sdn Bhd ("PESB") at Net Tangibie
Assets ("NTA") as at 31 December 2016. The proposed disposal of the subsidiary is
expected to be completed in 2017. As at 31 December 2016, the assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary have been presented in the statements of financial position as
"Assets of a subsidiary classified as held for sale” and "Liabilities of a subsidiary
classified as held for sale” and its result is presented separately on the income
statements as "Discontinued operations".

(i) Subsidiary classified as held for sale

Bank
2016
RM'000
Cost :
At 1 January -
Transferred from investment in subsidiaries 1,747
At 31 December 1,747
Accumulated allowance for impairment losses on investment in_
subsidiary
At 1 January -
Transferred from investment in subsidiaries 1,111
At 31 December 1,111
Net carrying amount (Note 46) 636

(i) Statement of financial position disclosure

The major classes of assets and liabilities of a subsidiary classified as held for sale
as at 31 December 2016 are as foilows:-

Carrying
amount
Group 31.12.2016
RM'000
Assets:
Cash and bank balances 842
Tax recoverable 4
Total assets 846
Liabilities:
Payables ' 215
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)}

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 {cont'd.)
10. Investments in Subsidiaries (cont'd.)
(c) Disposal of a subsidiary (cont'd.)

(iiiy Statement of cash flow disclosure

Cash outflow from operating activities

Cash inflow from investing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year

(d) Discontinued operations

2016
RM'000

(3)
24
821

842

The result from discontinued operation for the financial year ended 31 December 2016

is as follows:
Borcos PESB 2016
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Interest income 88 19 107
Interest expense (12,598) - (12,598)
Net interest income (12,510) 19 (12,491)
Non-interest income 16,366 - 16,366
Net income 3,856 19 3,875
Overhead expenses (28,818) (19) (28,837)
Allowance for impairment losses
on other assets (94,737) - (94,737)
Loss before taxation (119,699) - (119,699)
Tax expense (47) (5) (52)
Loss, net of tax (119,746} (5) (119,751)
Borcos PESB 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Interest income 85 19 104
Interest expense (21,864) - (21,864)
Net interest income (21,779} 19 (21,760}
Non-interest income 90,4680 - 90,460
Net income 68,681 19 68,700
Overhead expenses (136,748) (62} (136,810)
Allowance for impairment losses
on other assets (213,472) - (213,472)
Loss before taxation (281,539) (43) (281,582)
Tax expense (845) (4) (849)
Loss, net of tax (282,384) (47) (282,431)
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Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

11. Interest in Associates

Group
2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
At cost:
Unquoted ordinary shares 74,975 74,975
Less: Result from deconsolidation exercise (343) -
74,632 74,975
Group’s share of post acquisition reserve 3,282 3,028
77,914 78,003
Less: Accumulated impairment losses (74,675) (74,875)
Add: Result from deconsolidation exercise 343 -
(74,332) (74,675)
3,582 3,328
(i} Details of the associates incorporated in Malaysia are as follows:
Name of Associates
{incorporated in Effective interest held
Malaysia} by the Group Principal Activities
2016 2015
% %
Held through GMVB, a subsidiary:
Wawasan Bulk Services 27.0 27.0 Ship management

Sdn Bhd

Held through Syarikat Borcos
Shipping Sdn Bhd

Berkat Perkapalan - 441 Dormant

Sdn Bhd *

Held through SME Growth
Accelerated Fund Sdn Bhd
("SME GAF"), a subsidiary:

Ambang Wibawa 26.0 26.0 Dormant
Sdn Bhd *

Cantuman Wawasan 26.0 26.0 Dormant
Sdn Bhd *

Internexia Sdn Bhd * 26.0 26.0 Dormant
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 {cont'd.)

11. Interest in Associates (cont'd.)

(i) Details of the associates incorporated in Ma[a'ysia are as follows: (cont'd.)

Name of Associates

(incorporated in Effective interest held
Malaysia) by the Group Principal Activities
' 2016 2015
% %
Held through SME Growth

Accelerated Fund Sdn Bhd
("SME GAF"), a subsidiary:

(cont'd.)

MS Time Ventures 26.0 26.0 Dormant
Sdn Bhd *

Nano C Sdn Bhd * 26.0 26.0 Dormant

Profound Kestrel 49.0 49.0 Dormant
Laboratories Sdn Bhd *

Schiffs & Industries 26.0 26.0 Dormant
Tehcnic Sdn Bhd *

Wellad Communications 26.0 26.0 Dormant
Sdn Bhd *

* Audited by firms of auditors other than Ernst & Young, Malaysia.
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)
11. Interest in Associates (cont'd.)

The summarised financial statements of the associates not adjusted for the proportion
of ownership interest held by the Group are as follows:

(a) Summarised statement of financial position

Group
2016 2015
RM'000 RM"000
Total assets 38,245 45,058
Total liabilities 26,303 33,966
(b) Summarised statement of comprehensive income
Revenue 3,524 3,781
Profit for the financial year 773 409
(c) Reconciliation of the summarised financial information
Net assets at 1 January 11,092 9,482
Profit for the financia! year 773 409
Other comprehensive income 77 1,201
Net assets at 31 December 11,942 11,092
Interests in joint ventures 30% 30%
Carrying value of Group's interest in associates 3,682 3,328
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
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Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

12. Interestin JVs

At cost:

Unquoted ordinary shares

Group's share of post acquisition deficit
Less: Accumulated impairment losses

Advances to JVs:
within 1 year
1 year to 2 years
2 years to 5 years
More than 5 years
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

Group
2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
53,979 53,979
(9,182) {3,048)
(18,585) (18,585)
26,212 32,346
5,057 23,260
10,202 4,122
15,303 5,457
24,995 23,071
(48,345) (48,345)
7,212 7,565
33,424 39,911

The advances to JVs bear an interest of 2.4% to 7.0% (2015: 2.4% to 7.0%) per annum
and are repayable on a quarterly basis over a period of 10 years.

(i) Details of the JVs are as follows:

Principal Activities

Name of JVs
(incorporated in Effective interest held
Malaysia) by the Group

2016 2015

Heid through GMVB, a % %
subsidiary:

Alam Eksplorasi (M) 36.00 36.00
Sdn Bhd #

Alam Synergy [ (L) inc * 36.00 36.00

Alam Synergy il (L) Inc * 36.00 36.00

87

Ship-owning, ship operator,
ship agency, chartering
and other related fo shipping
industry

Ship-owning, ship operator
and charter hire of vessel

Ship-owning, ship operator,
and charter hire of vessel
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

12. Interest in JVs (cont'd.)

(i)

Details of the JVs are as follows:

Name of JVs
(incorporated in Effective interest held |
Malaysia) by the Group Principal Activities
2016 2015
Held through GMVB, a % %
subsidiary (cont'd.):

Alam Synergy Ill (L} Inc * 36.00 36.00 Ship-owning, ship operator,
and charter hire of vessel

Baycorp Ship Management  36.00 36.00 Ship management

Sdn Bhd *

Formasi Cekal Sdn Bhd * 36.00 36.00 Ship-owning, ship operator
and to undertake all kinds
of contract to carry
merchant goods

Gagasan Ked Sdn Bhd* 54.00 54.00  Ship-owning

Gagasan Paha Sdn Bhd * 54.00 54.00 Ship-owning

Global BMesra Sdn Bhd @ 44.10 4410  Ship-owning and freighting

Global BMesra Dua 44.10 4410 Ship-owning and freighting

Sdn Bhd @
Global Bikhlas Sdn Bhd @ 44 .10 44.10 Ship-owning and freighting
Sea Weasel Limited 4410 44 .10 Ship-owning and freighting

A Collectively known as Alam Group
# Collectively known as Gagasan Group
@ Collectively known as Globai Group
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Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

12. Interest in JVs (cont'd.)

The aggregate current assets, non-current assets, current liabilities and resuits of the JVs
are as follows (cont'd.):

(a) Summarised statement of financial position

2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
Assets:
Non current assets 97,204 204,069
Current assets 55,385 186,728
Total assets 152,589 390,797
Liabilities:
Non current liabilities 59,824 174,061
Current liabilities 199,694 242 169
Total liabilities 259,518 416,230
Net liabilities (106,929) (25,433)
(b) Summarised statement of comprehensive income
2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
Revenue 19,690 55,669
Cost of sales (27,174) (54,766)
Gross profit (7.484) 9203
Other income 7,824 35,530
Administrative expenses (60,218) (5,095)
Operating expenses (13,286) (43,216)
Loss from operations (73,164) (11,878)
Finance costs (8,271) (19,153)
Loss before taxation (81,435) (31,031)
Taxation (60) (67)
Loss for the financial year (81,495) (31,098)
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Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

12. Interest in JVs (cont'd.)

(¢} Reconciliation of the summarised financial information

Net assets at 1 January
Loss for the year

Net (liabilities)/assets at 31 December
Interests in joint ventures

Carrying value of Group's interest in joint ventures
Less: Cumulative unrecognised fosses b/f
Share of unrecognised (losses)/gain for the year

Net carrying value of Group's interest in joint ventures

2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
(25,434) 5,665
(81,495) (31,098)

(106,929) (25,433)
47,826 6,130
(59,103) (19,303)
(51,649) (54,612)
(33,666) 2,963
26,212 32,346
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.}

14. Prepaid Land Leases

Group and Bank

2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
Cost
At 1 January 1,662 2,012
Disposals - (350)
At 31 December 1,662 1,662
Depreciation
At 1 January 745 838
Charge for the financial year 34 40
Disposals - (133)
At 31 December 779 745
Carrying amount 883 917
15. Investment Properties
Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Cost
At 1 January 7,510 8,817 2,149 3,226
Disposals - (925) - (695)
Transfer from assets held
for sale (Note 44) 367 (382) 367 (382)
Transfer to assets held
for sale (Note 44) (2,886) - - -
Transfer from property, plant
and equipment 215 - - -
At 31 December 5,206 7,510 2,516 2,149
Depreciation and
impairment loss
At 1 January 4,125 4,059 1,310 1,287
Charge for the financial year 192 175 51 63
Disposals - (04) - (25)
Transfer to assets held
for sale (Note 44) - {15) - (15)
Adjustment 15 - - -
Af 31 December 4,332 4,125 1,361 1,310
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15. Investment Properties (cont'd.)

16,

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Accumulated impairment
losses
At 1 January/31 December (689) (689) - -
Carrying amount 1,563 4,074 1,165 839
Included in the above are:
Buildings 1,563 4,074 1,155 839

() The Directors of the Group and the Bank estimated the fair values of the investment
properties of the Group and the Bank to be RM11,080,000 (2015: RM11,320,000) and
RM3,830,000 (2015: RM4,250,000 respectively based on comparison with indicative
market value stated in the Property Market Report 2016 (2015: Property Market Report

2014).
intangible Assets
Group
Contract
based
Computer related
software intangibles Goodwifl Total
2016 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Cost
At 1 January 28,477 62,089 76,664 167,230
Addition 2,367 - - 2,367
Transfer from property, plant 1,924 - - 1,924
and equipment (Note 13)
Amount written off due to
deconsolidation of a subsidiary - (62,089) (76,664) (138,753)
At 31 December 32,768 - - 32,768
Amortisation
At 1 January 19,653 62,089 - 81,742
Amortisation charged 3,891 - - 3,891
Amount written off due to
deconsolidation of a subsidiary - {62,089) - (62,089)
At 31 December 23,544 - - 23,544
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16. Intangible Assets (cont'd.)

Group (cont'd.)

Contract
based
Computer related
software intangibles Goodwill Total
2016 RM"000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Accumulated
impairment losses
At 1 January - - 76,664 76,664
Amount written off due to
deconsolidation of a subsidiary - - (76,664) (76,664)
At 31 December - - - -
Carrying amount 9,224 - - 9,224
2015
Cost
At 1 January 26,859 62,089 76,664 165,612
Additions 1,618 .- - 1,618
At 31 December 28,477 62,089 76,664 167,230
Amortisation
At 1 January 15,701 46,579 - 62,280
Amortisation charged 3,852 15,510 - 19,462
At 31 December 19,653 62,089 - 81,742
Accumulated
impairment losses
At 1 January/
31 December - - 76,664 76,664
Carrying amount 8,824 - - 8,824
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16. Intangible Assets (cont'd.)
Group (cont'd.)
Contract based related intangibles
Contract based related intangibles relate to the customer contracts that were acquired in
business combinations. The intangibles are in respect of contracts that will expire by 2017;
and is amortised on a straight line basis up to expiry. The subsidiary of the Bank has fully

amortised the intangible assets as its Petronas license has been revoked, where all of the
existing contracts has been suspended.

Bank :
2016 2015
Computer Computer
software software
RM'000 RM'000
Cost

At 1 January 24,937 23,319
Additions 3,920 1,618
At 31 December 28,857 24,937

Amortisation
At 1 January 16,752 13,146
Amaortisation charged 3,720 3,606
At 31 December 20,472 16,752
Carrying amount 8,385 8,185
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17. Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)

Group _ Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

At 1 January (540) (17,217) 6,026 (12,538)
Recognised in income

statement 7,487 (876) (779) 943
Recognised in equity 8,186 17,553 7,958 17,621
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries 4 - - -
At 31 December 15,137 (540) 13,205 6,026
Presented after appropriate

offsetting as follows:
Deferred tax assets 18,127 8,938 13,205 6,026
Deferred tax liabilities (2,990) (9,478) - -

15,137 {540) 13,205 6,026

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set-
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate

to the same fiscal authority.

The components and movements of deferred tax assets and liabilities during the financial

year prior to offsetting are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

Loan loss Unrealised Other
and AFS temporary
Group allowances reserve differences Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
At 1 January 2016 2,978 (6,167) 13,835 10,646
Recognised in income . .
statement 1,784 - 506 2,290
Recognised in equity - 8,186 - 8,186
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries - - 4 4
At 31 December 2016 4,762 2,019 14,345 21,126
At 1 January 2015 5,269 (23,720) 15,759 (2,692)
Recognised in income
statement {2,291) - (1,924) (4,215)
Recognised in equity - 17,553 - 17,663
At 31 December 2015 2,978 (6,167) 13,835 10,646
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17. Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) (cont'd.)

The components and movements of deferred tax assets and liabilities during the financial
year prior to offsetting are as follows: (cont'd.)

Deferred tax liabilities

Loan loss Property,
and plant and
Group allowances equipment Total
RM'000 RNM’000 RM'000
At 1 January 2016 (3,545) (7,641) (11,186)
Recognised in income
statement (2,375) 7,572 5,197
At 31 December 2016 (5,920) (89) (5,989)
At 1 January 2015 - (14,525) (14,525)
Recognised in income
statement (3,545) 6,884 3,339
At 31 December 2015 (3,545) (7,641) {11,186)
Deferred tax assets
Unrealised Other
AFS temporary
Bank reserve differences Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
At 1 January 2016 (6,099) 12,281 6,182
Recognised in income statement - 506 506
Recognised in equity 7,958 - 7,958
At 31 December 2016 1.859 12,787 14,646
At 1 January 2015 (23,720) 11,880 (11,840)
Recognised in income statement - 401 401
Recognised in equity 17,621 - 17,621
At 31 December 2015 (6,099) 12,281 6,182
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17. Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) (cont'd.)

Deferred tax liabilities _

Property,

plant and

Bank equipment

RM’000

At 1 January 2016 . (1586)

Recognised in income statement (1,285)

At 31 December 2016 . (1,441)

At 1 January 2015 - (698)

Recognised in income statement 542

At 31 December 2015 (156)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:

Group

2016 2015

RM'000 - RM'000

Other deductible temporary differences - 25,479

Unutilised tax losses - 307,780

Unabsorbed capital allowances - 136,124

- 469,363

The unutilised tax losses and unabsorbed capital allowances of the Group are available for
offsetting against future taxable profits subject to no substantial change in shareholdings
under the income Tax Act, 1967 and guidelines issued by the tax authority.
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18. Deposits from Customers

Group and Bank

2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
Fixed deposits and negotiable instruments of deposits:
One year or less 9,750,551 7,752,319
(a) The deposits are sourced from the following types
of deposit:
Tawarrug 9,750,551 7,752,319
(b} The deposits are sourced from the following types
of customers:
Business enterprises 1,232,673 2,412,391
Government and statutory bodies 8,517,878 5,339,928
9,750,551 7,752,319
(¢) The deposits maturity structure are as follows:
Less than six months 7,713,416 6,928,880
Six months to one year 2,037,135 823,439
9,750,551 7,752,319
19. Deposits and Placements from Financial Institutions
Group and Bank
2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
Licensed banks 10,002 445,640
(a) The deposits maturity structure are as follows:
Less than six months 10,002 445 640
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20. Other Liabilities

Group Bank

2016 2015 2016 2015

Note RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Provision for taxation 1,747 1,369 - -

Zakat payables 19,339 22,671 17,137 21,807

Trade creditors 7,949 22,193 - -

Sundry creditors and

accruals 80,409 102,303 44 993 37,577
Provision for corporate

guarantees (i) - 69,160 - -

109,444 217,696 62,130 59,384

(i) Corporate guarantees payable in prior year was related to amounts due to certain banks
as a result of payment default by certain joint ventures, which a subsidiary of the Group
has provided corporate guarantees on the loan facilities granted to the joint ventures.

The movements of the provision for corporate guarantees are as follows:

Group
2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
At 1 January 69,160 59,300
Provision during the financial year - 9,860
Recovered during the financial year (69,160) -
At 31 December - 69,160
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21. Redeemable Notes

Group and Bank

Note 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
Redeemable non guaranteed notes
Medium term notes (i) 404,695 808,743
Medium term notes - Murabahah {ii) 1,511,080 -
. 1,915,785 808,743
Redeemable guaranteed notes
Medium term notes - Murabahah (iii} 3,041,671 3,041,671
Medium term notes (iv) 510,718

3,552,389 3,041,671

Infrastructure notes - nominal value (v) 455,733 506,473
Less: Unaccreted discount {3,581) (3,999)
452,142 502,474

(i

(i)

(i)

(iv)

v

5,920,316 4,352,888

This note carry coupon rates of 8.30% per annum and is for tenures 15 years. This note
will mature in Apri! 2021,

These notes were issued on 4 November 2016 and carry coupon rates ranging between
4.50% to 4.95% per annum and are for tenures of 10 to 19 years. These notes will
mature in November 2026 , 2031 and 2035 respectively.

These notes carry coupon rates ranging between 4.19% to 4.85% per annum and for
tenures of 7 to 20 years. These notes will mature in September 2021, 2024, 2029 and
2034 respectively.

These notes were issued on 22 January 2016 and carry coupon rates ranging between
4.52% to 5.08% per annum and for tenures of 7 to 15 years. These notes will mature in
January 2023 and 2031.

This note has a maturity of 25 years with nominal value of RM450,000,000 (2015:

RM300,000,000), which carry coupon rates of 7.20% (2015: 7.20%) per annum. These
notes will mature in October 2025.
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22. Borrowings

31 December 2016

31 December 2015

Due after Due within Due after Due within
twelve twelve twelve twelve
Note months months months months
Group RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Loans from Employees
Provident Fund ("EPF")
Unsecured: 22 (a)
Principal 2,500,000 - 2,500,000 1,000,000
Interest - 28,267 - 30,715
2,500,000 28,267 2,500,000 1,030,715
Other loans
Unsecured: 22 (b}
Principal 250,000 156,249 406,248 489,912
Interest - - 9,068 - 16,757
250,000 165,317 406,248 506,669
Other I'oans
Secured: 22 (c)
Principal - - - 169,751
2,750,000 : 193,584 2,906,248 1,707,135
Total borrowings 2,943,584 4,613,383
Bank
Loans from EPF
Unsecured: 22 (a)
Principal 2,500,000 - 2,500,000 1,000,000
Interest - 28,267 - 30,715
2,500,000 28,267 2,500,000 1,030,715
Other loans
Unsecured: 22 (b)
Principal 250,000 166,249 406,248 489,912
Interest - 9,068 - 16,757
250,000 165,317 406,248 506,669
2,750,000 193,584 2,906,248 1,537,384
Total borrowings 2,943,584 4,443,632
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22. Borrowings (cont'd.)
(a) Loan from EPF

Group and Bank

Principal
Note 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
Loan 1 22(a)(i) 2,000,000 2,000,000
Loan 2 22(a)(ii) 500,000 500,000
Loan 3 22(a)(iii) - 1,000,000

2,500,000 3,500,000

(i) The loan is repayable in § equal instalments over a period of 5 years, commencing
2019.

(i} The loan is repayable in 10 equal instalments over a period of 5 years, commencing
2024,

(i} The loan was drawndown on 5 December 2011 and is repayable via bullet
repayment in December 2016. This facility was settled during the current financial
year.

All the above loans are guaranteed by the Government of Malaysia and bear interest at
rates of 4.518% to 5.225% (2015: 3.746% to 5.225%) per annum.
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22. Borrowings (cont'd.)
(b) Other Loans - unsecured:

Group and Bank

Principal
Note 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
Loan from:

Japan Bank of International Cooperation 22(b)(i) 56,249 196,160
Pension Trust Fund Council ("PTFC") 22(b)(ii) 350,000 450,000

Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi Malaysia
Berhad 22(b)(iii) - 250,000
406,249 896,160

Included in other loan - unsecured are;

(i) The IT7 Loan from Japan Bank for International Cooperation ("JBIC") amounting to
RM56,248,500 (¥1,750,000,000) [2015: RM196,160,569 (¥6,102,836,000)] out of
total loan facility of RM1,747,580,000 (¥59,000,000,000). This is guaranteed by -
Government of Malaysia and will mature in March 2017. '

(i) The Loan from PTFC amounting to RM350,000,000 (2015: RM450,000,000) is
repayable in 10 instalments over a period of 6 years, commencing from 2015. This
loan will mature in 2020.

(iii) The Revolving Credit ("RC") Facility from Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi Malaysia Berhad
amounting to RM250,000,000 was drawndown in 2015 and settled during the
current financial year.

The interest rate on other loans - unsecured range from 1.84% to 5.875% (2015: 1.84%
to 5.875%) per annum during the financial year.
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22, Borrowings (cont'd.)

{c} Other Loans - secured:

Group
Principal

Note 2016 2015

RM'000 RM'000

Istamic financing facility 22(c)(i) - 88,310
Term loans 22(c)(i) - 77,719
Finance lease liabilities 22(c)(ii) - 29
Overdrafts 22(c)(iii) - 3,623

- 169,751

In prior year, these facilities relates to borrowings undertaken by Borcos :
(i) Islamic financing facility and term foans
The Islamic financing facility and term loans bear profit/interest of 4.10% to 7.85%

per annum, repayable monthly and secured by the following:

(i) negative pledges over the leasehold land of a subsidiary of the Bank;
(i) equitable assignment of contract with customers;
(iii) statutory mortgages over the vessels of the Group; and
(iv) jointly and severally guaranteed by the Directors of the Group.
(i) Finance lease liabilities

The hire purchase liabilities bear flat interest rate of 2.50% per annum.

(iify Overdrafts

Bank overdrafts are denominated in RM, beér intereét of 7.0% to 7.5% per annum
and secured by deposit placed with licensed banks:

As Borcos has been placed under CVL and the Group has lost control over Borcos, as

disclosed in Note 10(b), the borrowings have been derecognised from the Group's
consolidated financial statements.
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23,

24,

Infrastructure Support Fund ("ISF")

Group and Bank

2016 2015
Note RM'000 RM'000

ISF - Novated loans
At 1 January/31 December (i) 303,974 303,974
Infrastructure Support Fund (ii)
At 1 January 33,152 63,348
IA made during the financial year against

ISF (Note 30) (9,334) (11,060)
ISF for CA written back (Note 30) 7 -
Impairment of financial investments made

during the financial year against ISF (Note 30) (25,279) (21,166)
Recoverable from loan written off against

ISF (Note 30) 4,059 2,030
At 31 December 2,605 33,152

306,579 337,126

(i) The amount relates to financial assistance given by the Government of Malaysia upon
novation of loans and the related borrowing to finance the loans to the Bank. The Fund
will be utilised to cover any future losses, costs and expenses incurred by the Bank
upon the final settlement of the loans.

(i) The amount relates to funds received from the Government to cover losses arising from
loanffinancing default, any allowance for impaiment losses, write-off and other liquidity
requirements that may arise from loans given for government infrastructure projects.

Deferred Income
Group and Bank
2016 20156
RM'000 RM'000
At 1 January 239,420 243,977
Utilised during the financial year (5,400) (4,557)
At 31 December 234,011 239,420

Deferred income relates to amount received from the government for interest rate
differentials on a loan given for a government infrastructure project.
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25. Share capital

Number of shares Amount
2016 2015 2016 2015
Group and Bank '000 ‘000 RM'000 RM'000
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of
RM1.00 each 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of
RM1.00 each 3,078,724 3,078,724 3,078,724 3,078,724
26. Reserves
Group Bank
Note 2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Non-distributable:
Capital reserve 26 (i) 1,000 1,000 - -
Statutory reserve 26 (ii) 1,910,715 1,897,676 1,910,715 1,897,676
Unrealised AFS
reserve 26 (jii) (6,405) 18,501 (5,887) 18,298
Exchange translation
reserve 26 (iv) (40,776) 163,160 - -
1,864,534 2,080,337 1,904,828 1,915,974
Distributable:
Retained profits 27 2,608,236 2,403,140 2,407,383 2,368,266
4472,770 4,483,477 4,312,211 4,284,240

(i) The capital reserve of the Group arose from the capitalisation of bonus issue in certain
subsidiaries in previous financial years. :

(i) The statutory reserves are maintained in compliance with the requirements of Section
39 of Development Financial Institution Act 2002 ("the Act") and are not distributable as
cash dividends. Under the Act, the Bank is required to transfer at least 25% of its profit
after tax, as the statutory reserves is more than 50% but less than 100% of its paid up
capital.

- (iiiy Unrealised AFS reserve represents the cumulative fair value changes, net of tax, of
AFS financial assets until they are disposed of or impaired.
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26. Reserves (cont'd.)

Movements of the AFS reserve are as follows:

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
At 1 January 2,185 54,845 1,882 54,845
Reclassification -

(Note 50) 16,316 16,316 16,316 16,316
At 1 January, restated 18,501 71,161 18,298 71,161
Unrealised loss on

fair value changes (33,092) (68,138) (32,143) (68,409)
Realised gain transferred

to profit or loss - (2,075) - (2,075)
Transfer to deferred tax 8,186 17,553 7958 17,621
At 31 December (6,405) 18,501 (5,887) 18,298

{(iv) The exchange translation reserve represents exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign operations whose functional currencies
are different from that of the Group's presentation currency.

27. Retained Earnings

The retained earnings of the Bank can be distributed as dividends under the single-tier
system.
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28. Interest Income

29,

Loans, advances and
financing

Compensation from the
Government

Money at call and deposit
placements with
financial institutions

Financial investments - AFS

Financial investments - HTM

Accretion of discount less
amortisation of premium

Of which:

Interest income earned on
impaired loans, advances
and financing

Interest Expense

Deposits from customers

Deposits and placements
from financial institutions

Bills and acceptance payable

Borrowings

Redeemabie notes

Others

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
933,561 1,082,885 911,014 1,064,372
120,092 115,034 120,092 115,034
35,327 45,027 27,217 31,624
17,047 22,311 17,047 22,311
- 4,483 - 4,483
1,106,027 1,269,740 1,075,370 1,237,824
(499) 13,856 (499) 13,856
1,105,528 1,283,596 1,074,871 1,251,680
52,616 72,599 52,354 72,599

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
149,571 108,791 149,571 108,790
5,443 8,307 5,443 6,113
33,632 27,789 33,832 27,789
176,388 290,358 176,388 292,794
85,327 86,242 85,327 86,242
8,896 1,785 8,572 -
459,257 521,272 458,933 521,728
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30. Non-Interest Income

(a)

(b)

(c)

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Other operating income:
Charter hire income - 1,478 - -
- 1,478 - -
Investment income:
Net gain on sale of;
Financial investments
- AFS - 800 - 800
Gross dividends from:
Financial investments
- AFS 7,800 9,146 7,800 9,087
7,800 9,046 7,800 9,887
Other income:
Fee income 24,907 17,010 20,184 14,539
Rental income:
- Subsidiaries - - 825 824
- Others 2,167 2,289 2,051 2172
Gain/(loss) on disposal
of property, plant and
equipment 205 (266) 196 (386)
Loss on disposal
of prepaid land lease - (218) - (218)
Gain on disposal of
investment property - 741 - 741
Gain/(loss) on foreign
exchange
Realised 200 91 - -
Unrealised ° : (879) 2,378 (879) (224)
Others 10,633 2,822 284 7
37,323 24,847 22,661 17,455
Total non-interest
inconie 45,123 36,271 30,461 27,342
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31. Compensation from/(to) the Government

32,

IA made during the financial
year against ISF

CA written back during the
financial year against ISF

Recoverable from loan written
off against ISF

Financial investments
impairment made during the
financial year against ISF

Overhead Expenses

Note

Personnel costs ()]
Establishment related

expenses (i}
Promotion and

marketing

expenses (iii)
General administrative

expenses (iv)

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM"000 RM'000 RN'000 RM'000
9,334 11,060 9,334 11,060
(7) - () -
(4,059) (2,030) (4,059) (2,030)
25,279 21,166 25,279 21,166
30,547 30,196 30,547 30,196
Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
79,078 58,928 56,196 51,759
17,468 41,661 13,884 13,645
2,316 3,935 2,316 3,001
11,222 9,118 15,806 15,262
110,084 113,642 88,202 84,567
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32. Overhead Expenses (cont'd.)

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000  RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
(i) Personnel costs
Salaries, allowances
and bonuses 58,720 43,125 42,842 39,345
Non-executive Directors'
fees and remuneration: 2,350 1,757 1,696 1,398
Social security cost 322 311 238 204
Pension costs - Defined _
contribution plan 6,613 6,417 5,260 4,835
Compensation paid
on loss of employment 3,803 - - -
Other staff related
expenses 7,270 7,318 6,160 5,977
79,078 58,928 56,196 51,759
(i} Establishment related
expenses
Depreciation:
Property, plant and
equipment 4,134 29,146 3,409 4,238
investment properties 192 175 51 63
Amortisation of:
Prepaid lease rental 34 40 34 40
Intangible assets 3,891 3,951 3,720 3,606
Repairs and maintenance
of property, plant and
equipment 3,507 3,786 1,819 2,077
-Information technology _ : :
expenses 5,710 4,563 4,751 3,621
17,468 41,661 13,884 - 13,645
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32. Overhead Expenses (cont'd.)

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM"000
(iii) Promotion and
marketing expenses
Advertisement and
publicity 2,316 3,935 2,316 3,901
(iv} General administrative
expenses
General administrative
expenses 9,148 7,716 14,900 14,662
Auditors’ remuneration:
- Statutory audit 1,180 840 424 373
- Non-audit services
regulatory related
services 56 15 30 15
- Other services 681 529 441 212
Property, plant and
equipment written off 157 18 11

11,222 9,118 15,8086 15,262
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16562-K

Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 {cont'd.)

34. Compensation to Key Management Personnel

Key management personnel are defined as Directors of the Bank, executive and non-
executive having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the Group and the Bank directly or indirectly. The remuneration and
compensation of the Directors of the Bank during the financial year are as follows:

Group Bank
Note 2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Short term employee
benefits’ (excluding
benefits-in-kind) 33 3,397 2,247 2,743 1,888
Included in the above are:
Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Executive Director's
remuneration
(excluding -
benefits-in-kind) 33 1,047 490 1,047 490

35. Allowances for/(Writeback of) Impairment Losses of Loans, Advances and Financing

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Individual allowances ("IA"):
Made during the financial
year 716,895 241,257 687,648 217,221
Written back (115,905) (75,853) (95,771) (37,937)
Transferred from CA 350,922 64,260 - 350,922 64,260
Transferred to CA (22,317) (21,933) (22,317) (21,933)

Balance carried forward 929,595 207,731 920,482 221,611
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

35. Allowances for/(Writeback of) Impairment Losses of Loans, Advances and Financing

(cont'd.)

Balance brought forward
Collective allowances ("CA"):
Made during the financial

year
Written back
Transferred to IA
Transferred from (A
Bad debts and financing:
Written off
Recovered

36. Allowances for/(Writeback of) Impairment Losses on Other Assets

Financial investments - AFS
Financial investments - HTM
Investments in subsidiaries
Amount due from subsidiaries
Interest in JVs
Advance to JVs
Interest in associates
Amount due from associates
Trade receivables
Amount due from resigned staff
- written off
- written back

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
929,595 207,731 920,482 221,611
111,939 272,260 73,225 272,356
(5,178) (14,748) - (9,473)
(350,922) (64,260) (350,922) (64,260)
22,317 21,933 22,317 21,933
9,002 1,684 8,673 1,684
(77,181) {31,469) (73,741) (22,459)
639,572 393,131 600,034 421,392
Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
- (800) - -
25,279 21,166 25,279 21,166
- - 91,172 172,884
- - - (3,462)
- 6,950 - -
- 12,566 - -
(1,456) (163) - -
- 457 - -
1,103 - - -
- 47 - 47
(32) (329} (32) (329)
24,894 39,894 116,419 190,306
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

37. Taxation
Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Income tax expense:
Current income tax 76,598 111,511 54,740 90,713
(Over)/under provision
in prior years (668) 2,363 3,428 626
75,930 113,874 58,168 91,339
Deferred tax expense:
Origination and reversal of
temporary differences (9,452) 3,405 196 6,455
Under/(over) provision in prior
year 1,965 (2,529) 583 (7,398)
(7,487) 876 779 (943)
Real property gains tax
paid on disposal of
investment properties - 230 - 230
68,443 114,980 58,947 90,626

Domestic income tax is calculated at the Malaysian statutory tax rate of 24% (2015. 25%) of

the estimated assessable profit for the financial year.

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before taxation and zakat at the
statutory income tax rate to income tax expense at the effective income tax rate of the Group

and of the Bank are as follows:
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)
37. Taxation {cont'd.)

Reconciliation of effective taxation

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Profit before taxation and
zakat 207,563 406,414 125,658 228,120
Tax using Malaysian tax rate
of 24% (2015: 25%) 49,815 31,208 30,158 57,030
Income not subject to tax (99,567) (10,681) (4,459) (9,085)
Non-deductible expenses 82,459 40,596 29,237 49,223
Deferred tax assets not
recognised during the year 34,439 53,818 - -
Utilisation of previously
unrecognised capital
allowances and tax losses - (25) - -
67,146 114,916 54,936 87,168
Under/(over) provision of
deferred tax in prior years 1,965 (2,529) 583 (7,398)
(Over)/under provision of income
tax in prior years (668) 2,363 3,428 626
Real property gains tax
paid on disposal of
investment properties - 230 - 230
Taxation 68,443 114,980 58,947 90,626
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

38. Dividends

39,

Dividends recognised in the current year by the Bank are:

2016 2015
Sen per Total Sen per Total
share amount share amount
RM'000 RM'000
Final 2014 ordinary, net of tax - - 1.20 37,000
- - 1.20 37,000

No dividend was declared or paid for the financial year ended 31 December 2015.

At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, a final single tier tax exempt dividend in respect
of the financial year ended 31 December 2016, of 3.25% on 3,078,724,049 ordinary shares,
amounting to a dividend payable of RM100,000,000 (3.25 sen net per ordinary share) will be
proposed for the shareholders' approval. The financial statements for the current financial
year do not reflect this proposed dividend. Such dividend, if approved by the shareholders,
will be accounted for in equity as an appropriation of retained profits in the financial year
ending 31 December 2017.

Earnings Per Share ("EPS")

The basic EPS of the Group and the Bank are calculated by dividing the net profit for the
financial year attributable to equity holders of the Bank by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the financial year.

Group
2016 2015
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity
holders of the Bank (RM'000)
- continuing operations 119,281 293,439
- discontinued operations 98,854 (282,431)
218,135 11,008
Number of ordinary shares in
issue ('000) . 3,078,724 3,078,724
Basic EPS (sen) for:
- continuing operations 3.87 9.53
- discontinued operations 3.21 (9.17)
' 7.08 0.36
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)
40. Commitments and Contingencies

(a) Loan and financing related commitments and contingencies of the Group and the Bank
which are not included in these financial statements are as follows:

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Disbursement of loans .
to industries 7,036,816 3,792,729 6,821,827 3,459,984
Direct credit substitutes - 27,170 - 27,170
Secured guarantees on
behalf of borrowers
given to third parties 1,314,598 1,318,399 1,314,598 1,318,399

8,351,414 5,138,298 8,136,425 4,805,553

The above corporate guarantees issued by a subsidiary to financial institutions related
to contingent liability on corporate guarantees based on the outstanding balances of
the credit facilities granted to JVs. '

(b) Capital commitments of the Group and the Bank which are not included in these
financial statements are as follows:

Group Bank

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Capital expenditure:
Approved but not

contracted for 10,128 6,374 10,128 6,374
Approved but not

contracted for
investment - 172,740 - -
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)
41. Capital Adequacy
Capital management

Capital polic

The overall objective of capital management is to maintain a strong capital position in order
to provide opportunities for business growth and to provide cushion for any potential losses.
In line with this objective, the Bank views capital position as an important key barometer of
financial health.

Reguiatory capital

In order to support its mandated roles, the Bank must have strong and adequate capital to
support its business activities on an on-going basis. In line with this objective, Bank Negara
Malaysia has imposed several regulatory capital requirements whereby, the Bank must have
an absolute minimum capital of RM300,000,000 and a minimum Risk Weighted Capital Ratio
("RWCR") of 8% at all times. The minimum capital funds refer to paid-up capital and
reserves as defined in Section 3 of Development Financial Institution Act 2002.

In order to further strengthen the capital position of the Bank through a progressive and
systematic building up of the reserve fund, the minimum RWCR under both normal and
stress scenarios shall not be less than 20% and 12% respectively.

The following table sets forth capital resources and capital adequacy for the Bank as at
reporting date.

Bank
2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
Tier 1 capital
Paid-up share capital 3,078,724 3,078,724
Other reserves 4,312,211 4,265,942
Total Tier 1 capital 7,390,935 7,344,666
Tier 2 capital
Government support funds 540,590 576,546
Collective allowance* 647,023 823,305
Total Tier 2 capital 1,187,613 1,399,851
Total capital 8,578,548 8,744,517
Less: Investment in subsidiaries (389,0561) {480,859)
Total capital base 8,189,497 8,263,658

*  The eligible amount for Tier 2 capital is after excluding CA on impaired loans, advances

and financing of the Bank.
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)
41. Capital Adequacy (cont'd.)
Capital management (cont'd.)

Regulatory capital (cont'd.)

Breakdown of risk-weighted assets in the various categories of risk-weights:

Bank
2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
20% 215,197 239,420
50% 1,694,456 821,641
100% 21,727,110 20,379,230

23,636,763 21,440,291

Without deducting proposed dividend.

Bank
2016 2015
% %
Core capital ratio 31.269 34.256
RWCR 34.647 38.543
After deducting proposed dividend:
Core capital ratio 30.846 34.256
RWCR 34.224 38.543

Capital monitoring

The Bank's capital is closely monitored and actively managed. Besides the regulatory capital
requirement of 8%, the Bank sets an internal capital requirement limit that would act as a
buffer to the regulatory capital and as an indicator that affords the Bank a "well capitalised”
status. Internal capital limit and regulatory capital requirement shall be closely monitored,
regularly reviewed and reported to Management and Board of Directors.
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)
42. Other Contingencies

Contingent liabilities not considered remote litigation {unsecured)

Subsidiary of the Bank

A subsidiary is being sued by a client alleging that the subsidiary has failed to exercise due
diligence and duty of care in foreclosing the client's collateral. The client alleged to have
suffered significant loss and has applied the Interlocutory Injunction from the Court to refrain
the subsidiary from foreclosing the remaining collateral value of RM3.0 million. Mediation
which was conducted on 5 February 2015 failed to reach an amicable settlement. Full trial
held from 20 March 2017 to 23 March 2017, with 4 witnesses testified before the Court on
behalf of the subsidiary. Trial has been concluded pending the submission of the bundle
simultaneously by both parties before 30 May 2017 and the reply to the submission before
16 June 2017.

The defendant has closed the case on 23 March 2017. The Judge has given a date for both
parties to file their submission simultaneously on 30 May 2017 and each parties has
apporiunity to reply to the other party submission on 16 January 2017. The decision date
however, is yet to given by the Judge and will only be informed by Court at a later date.
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)
43. Significant Related Party Transactions and Balances

For the purpose of these financial statements, parties are considered to be related to the
Group if the Group or the Bank has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or
exercise significant influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or
vice versa, or where the Group or the Bank and the party are subject to common control or
common significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or other entities.

The Government of Malaysia ("GOM") is a shareholder with significant influence on the
Bank, with direct shareholding of 99.99% (2015: 99.99%). GOM and entities directly
controfled by GOM are collectively referred to as government-related entities to the Group
and the Bank.

Related parties also include key management personnel defined as those persons having
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group
and the Bank either directly or indirectly. The key management personnel includes all the
Directors of the Bank as disclosed in Note 34,

The Group has related party relationships with its substantial shareholders, subsidiaries,
associates and key management personnel.

Related party transactions have been entered into in the normal course of business under
normal trade terms. The Group established credit policies, pricing strategy and approval
process for loans, which are independent of whether the counterparties are government-
related entities or not. The significant related party transactions and balances of the Group
and the Bank are as follows:

43.1 Significant balances and transactions with a significant shareholder

(a) Significant balances with a significant shareholder

Group and Bank

2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
Other asseis
Amount receivable from Government in respect
of compensation for:
Foreign exchange differences 85,361 85,361
Infrastructure projects 46,819 46,956
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)
43. Significant Related Party Transactions and Balances (cont'd.)
43.1 Significant balances and transactions with a significant shareholder (cont'd.)

(b) Significant transactions with a significant shareholder

Group and Bank

2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
Conventional
Interest compensation from Government of
Malaysia 120,092 115,034
Compensation from Government of Malaysia:
- |A made during the financial year against ISF 9,334 11,060
- ISF for CA written back (7) -
- recoverable from loan written off against ISF (4,059) (2,030)
- impairment of financial investments made
during the financial year against ISF 25,279 21,166
Islamic
Profit compensation from Government of Malaysia 16,289 15,017
Fee income from Unit Kerjasama Awam Swasta
("UKAS") 7,693 5,000
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 {cont'd.}
43. Significant Related Party Transactions and Balances {cont'd.}

43.2 Significant balances and transactions with a significant shareholder's linked
companies and bodies :

(a) Significant balances with a significant shareholder's linked companies and bodies

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Assets
Short term deposits 1,102,692 1,274,131 850,380 1,013,498
Deposits and
placements with
financial institution - 51,672 - -
Financial investments
- AFS 3,667,451 1,986,905 3,663,793 1,882,433
Financial investments
- HTM 185,744 184,489 185,722 184,467
Liabilities
Deposits from _
customers 9,750,551 7,752,319 9,750,551 7,752,319
Deposits and
placements from
financial
institutions 10,002 445,640 10,002 445,640
Redeemable notes 5,920,316 4,352 888 5,920,316 4,352,888
Bills and acceptance
payable - 1,742,193 - 1,742,193
Borrowings 2,887,055 3,991,868 2,887,055 3,991,868
ISF 306,579 337,126 306,579 337,126
Deferred income 234,011 239,420 234,011 239,420
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 {cont'd.)
43. Significant Related Party Transactions and Balances {cont'd.)

43.2 Significant balances and transactions with a significant shareholder's linked
companies and bodies (cont'd.)

(b) Significant transactions with a significant shareholder's linked companies and bodies

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Conventional

Income
Money at call and

deposit placements

with financial

institutions 24,882 40,285 16,690 26,775
Financial investments

- AFS 16,202 21,785 16,202 21,785
Financial investments

-~-HTM - 4,483 - 4,483
Amortisation of

premium less

accretion of

discount (499) 13,856 (499) 13,856
Dividend from Unit

Trust 7.800 7,307 7,800 7,248
Rental income 2,175 2,289 2,051 2,172

Expenses
Interest expense on:

Deposits from
customers and
- financial institutions (155,014) (115,098) (155,014) (114,904)
Borrowings (187,147) (302,807) (176,388) (283,379)
Redeemable notes (33,632) (86,242) (33,632) (86,242)
Bills and acceptance
payable (85,327) (27,789) (85,327) (27,789)
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
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Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)
43. Significant Related Party Transactions and Balances (cont'd.)

43.2 Significant balances and transactions with a significant shareholder's linked
companies and bodies (cont'd.)

(b) Significant transactions with a significant shareholder's linked companies and bodies
{cont'd.)

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Istamic

Income
Finance income from

deposits and

placements with

financial institutions 21,507 28,098 20,133 27,529
Financial investments

- AFS 92,198 24733 92,198 24,733
Financial investments

-HTM 4,264 1,942 4,264 1,942
Accretion of discount

less amortisation

of premium 27,015 10,757 27,015 10,757

Expenses
Income attributable to

the depositors:
Deposits from

customers and

financial institutions (213,343) (176,810) (213,343) (176,810)
Redeemable notes (161,596) (160,430) (161,596) {160,430)
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Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 {cont'd.)

43. Significant Related Party Transactions and Balances (cont'd.)

43.3 Significant halances and transactions with subsidiaries, associates and JVs

(a) Significant balances with subsidiaries, associates and JVs

Conventional

- Loans to subsidiaries

Payment on behalf of subsidiary

Conventional

lncome

Interest income from loan to subsidiaries
Rental income from subsidiaries

Fee Income from subsidiaries

Expenses
Management fee expense from subsidiaries

Profit from financing to subsidiaries

135

(b} Significant transactions with subsidiaries, associates and JVs

Bank
2016 2015
RM000 RM'000
18 47 647
708 1,603

Bank
2016 2015
RM'000 RM"000
- 2,969
825 824
1,029 1,093
(12) (12)
- 327
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
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Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

43. Significant Related Party Transactions and Balances (cont'd.)

43.4 Significant balances and transactions with Group's related parties

(a) Significant balances with the Group's related parties

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Other assets
Trade receivables due
from related parties 101,277 31,541 - -
Other liabilities
Trade payables due to
related parties 2 187 - -
(b) Significant transactions with Group's related parties
Income
Dividend from gquoted
shares
- AFS - 1,839 - 1,839
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Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

43. Significant Related Party Transactions and Balances (cont'd.)

The

credit exposures above are based on paragraph 9.1 of BNM revised Guidelines on

Credit Transactions and Exposures with related parties as follows:

(i)
(i}
(il

(iv)

(v)

(vi)
(vii)

Directors of the Bank and their close relatives;
Controlling shareholder of the Bank and his close relatives;

Executive officer, being a member of management having authority and responsibility
for planning, directing and/or controlling activities of the Bank and his close relatives;

Officers who are responsible for or have authority to appraise and/or approve credit
transactions or review the status of existing credit transactions, either as a member of a
committee or individually and their close relatives;

Firms, partnerships, companies or any legal entities which control, or are controlled by
any person listed in (i) to (iv) above, or in which they have an interest, as a director,
partner, executive officer, agent or guarantor, and their subsidiaries or entities
controlied by them;

Any person for whom the persons listed in (i) to (iv) above is a guarantor; and

Subsidiary of an entity controlled by the Bank and its connected parties.

Credit transactions and exposures to connected parties as disclosed above include the
extension of credit facilities and/or off-balance sheet credit exposures such as guarantees,
trade-related facilities and loan/financing commitments.

137



16562-K

Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)
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44. Assets Classified as Held For Sale

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
Note RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
As at 1 January 394,541 18,534 367 -
Disposed during the
financial year (i) - (18,534) - -
Transfer from
property, plant and
equipment (i) - 394,174 - -
Impairment of vessels
during the year (i) (89,667) - - -
Deconsolidation of
a subsidiary (i) {304,507) - - -
Transfer to investment
properties i) (367) 367 (367) 367
Transfer from
investment
properties (iv) 2,886 - - -
As at 31 December 2,886 394,541 - 367

() The vessel was classified as non-current assets held for sale in 2013. Memorandum of
Agreements were signed in 2014 between the purchaser and the subsidiary, however,
the risks and rewards were not transferred to the purchaser as at 31 December 2014.
All conditions precedent for the disposal were satisfied during the year.

(i) These vessels belong to Borcos Group and were classified under asset held for sale in
prior year, as there was an active plan to identify buyers for disposal. During the year,
the Group made an additional impairment of RM89,667,000 on the vessels. The amount
was deconsolidated from the Group's financial statements as Borcos was placed under
CVL on 22 December 2016, as disclosed in Note 10(b).

(i) The investment properties were classified as non-current assets held for sale in 2015.
The Sales and Purchase Agreement was signed between the purchaser and the Bank
in 2015. However, the sale agreement could not be perfected as the investment
properties are on a reserve land and the state goverment did not approve the sale of the
investment properties. The properties have been transferred back to investment
properties of the Group and of the Bank.

(iv) The investment property were classified as non-current assets held for sale during the
year. Sales and Purchase Agreement was signed between the purchaser and the
Group as at year end.
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45. Subsequent Event

The Companies Act, 2016 ("New Act") was enacted to replace the Companies Act, 1965 in
Malaysia with the objectives of creating a legal and regulatory structure that will facilitate
business and promote accountability as well as protection of corporate directors and
shareholders taking into consideration the interest of other stakeholders. The New Act was
passed on 4 April 2018 by the Dewan Rakyat (House of Representative) and gazetted on 15
September 2016. On 26 January 2017, the Minister of Domestic Trade, Co-operatives and
Consumerism announced that the date on which the New Act comes into operation, except
for section 241 and Division 8 of Part II! of the New Act, would be on 31 January 2017.

Among the key changes introduced in the New Act which will affect the financial statements
of the Bank upon the commencement of the New Act on 31 January 2017 are:

(a) Removal of the authorised share capital; and
(b) Shares of the Bank will cease to have par or nominal value.

The adoption of the New Act is not expected to have any financial impact on the Bank for the
current financial year as any accounting implications will only be applied retrospectively, if
applicable, and the effect of adoption mainly will be on the disclosures in the financial
statements of the Bank for the financial year ending 31 December 2017.
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46. Companies in the Group
(a) The subsidiaries, all incorporated in Malaysia, are as follows:

Effective interest held

by the Bank
Subsidiary 2016 2015 Principal activities
% %
BPMB Urus Harta 100.00 100.00 Dormant
Sdn Bhd
Emerald Upline Sdn Bhd 100.00 100,00 Ship-owning
Global Maritime Ventures 90.00 90.00 Venture capital investment
Berhad {("GMVB")
Maju Nominees 100.00 100.00 Nominee for the holding
(Tempatan) Sdn Bhd company
Pembangunan Ekuiti 54.80 54,80 Dormant
Sdn Bhd
Pembangunan Leasing 100.00 100.00 Lease, hire purchase
Corporation Sdn Bhd financing, factoring,
block discounting and
investment holding
SME GAF 100.00 100.00 Venture capital investment
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46. Companies in the Group (cont'd.)

(b) Details of subsidiary companies of GMVB, all of which are incorporated in Malaysia, are

as follows:
Effective interest held
by the Bank
Subsidiary 2016 2015 Principal activities
% %

Mutiara Navigation - 63.00 63.00 Dormant

Sdn Bhd
intan Navigation 63.00 63.00 Dissolved

Sdn Bhd
Nilam Navigation 63.00 63.00 Dormant

Sdn Bhd
Kasa Navigation '63.00 63.00 Dissolved

Sdn Bhd
Mayang Navigation 63.00 63.00 Dissolved

Sdn Bhd
Sari Navigation 63.00 63.00 Dormant

Sdn Bhd
Tiara Navigation 63.00 63.00 Dissolved

Sdn Bhd
Glory Incentive Sdn Bhd 90.00 90.00 Investment holding
GMV-ALAM Sdn Bhd 90.00 80.00 Investment holding
GMV-Bahtera Sdn Bhd 90.00 90.00 Investment holding
GMV-Borcos Sdn Bhd 90.00 90.00 Investment holding
GMV-Gagasan Sdn Bhd 90.00 90.00 Investment holding
GMV-Global Sdn Bhd 80.00 80.00 tnvestment holding
GMV-Efogen Sdn Bhd 90.00 90.00 Investment holding
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46. Companies in the Group (cont'd.)

(b) Details of subsidiary companies of GMVB, all of which are incorporated in Malaysia, are

as follows:
Effective interest held
by the Bank
Subsidiary 2016 2015 Principal activities
% %
GMV-Jasa Sdn Bhd 90.00 90.00 Investment holding
GMV-Omni Sdn Bhd 90.00 90.00 investment holding
GMV-Regional Sdn Bhd 90.00  90.00  Dormant
GMV-Orkim Sdn Bhd 90.00 90.00 Investment holding
GMV-Offshore Sdn Bhd 90.00 90.00 Investment holding

(c) Details of subsidiary companies of Glory Incentive Sdn Bhd (GISB), all of which are
incorporated in Malaysia, are as follows:

Effective interest held

by the Bank
Subsidiary 2016 2015 Principal activities
% %

Permata Navigation 63.00 63.00 Dormant
Sdn Bhd

Gemala Navigation 63.00 63.00 Dormant
Sdn Bhd

Ratna Navigation 63.00 63.00 Dormant
Sdn Bhd

Kencana Navigation 63.00 63.00 Dormant
Sdn Bhd :

Ayu Navigation Sdn Bhd 63.00 63.00 Dormant
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46. Companies in the Group (cont'd.)

(d) Details of a subsidiary company of GMV-Borcos Sdn Bhd, which is incorporated in
Malaysia, are as follows:

Effective interest held

by the Bank
Subsidiary 2016 2015 Principal activities
% %
Syarikat Borcos Shipping - 90.00 Creditors' Voluntary Liquidation

SdnBhd @ *

(e) Details of subsidiary companies of Syarikat Borcos Shipping Sdn Bhd, all of which are
incorporated in Malaysia (except for #), are as follows:

Effective interest held

by the Bank
Subsidiary 2016 20156 Principal activities
% %

Wijaya Navigation 90.00 90.00  Dormant
Sdn Bhd

Borcos Tasneem 90.00 90.00 Vessel chartering
Offshore Ltd @

Borcos Firdaus Marine 90.00 90.00 Vessel chartering
Offshore Ltd @

Borcos SSV Marine 90.00 90.00 Vessel chartering
Offshore Ltd @

Borcos Franklin Offshore 45.90 45.90 Dormant
Mooring Sdn Bhd

Cendana Lagenda 90.00 90.00 Vessel chartering
Sdn Bhd @ :

P.T. Borcos 90.00 90.00 Vessel chartering
Nusantarajaya # @
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46. Companies in the Group (cont'd.)

(f) Details of a subsidiary company of GMV-Global Sdn Bhd, which is incorporated in
Malaysia, are as follows:

Effective interest held

by the Bank
Subsidiary 2016 2015 Principal activities
% %
Bahtera Berlian Sdn Bhd 100.00 100.00 Ship-management

(9) Details of subsidiary companies of Pembangunan Leasing Corporation Sdn Bhd
("PLC"), all of which are incorporated in Malaysia, are as follows:

Effective interest held

by the Bank :
Subsidiary 2016 2015 Principal activities
% %
PLC Credit & Factoring 100.00 100.00 Hire purchase financing,
Sdn Bhd confirming and factoring,
' insurance agency.
Bl Credit & Leasing Berhad  100.00 100.00 Credit and leasing

# Incorporated in Indonesia. Audited by firms of auditors other than Emst & Young,

@ The financial statements of the subsidiary for the financial year ended 31 December
2016 was prepared on a basis other than that of a going concern basis as it is the
intention of the Company to cease operations upon disposal of the subsidiary's assets.

@ * Placed under creditors voluntary liquidation during the financial year.
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47. Financial Instruments Risk
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s and the Bank's financial risk management policies seek to enhance shareholder
value. The Group and the Bank focus on the enterprise wide risk exposure, which include
credit, market, liquidity and operational risk and seek to minimise potential adverse effects
on the financial performance of the Group and the Bank. As part of the Group’s and the
Bank's strategy to integrate the management and control of risks across the various risk
segments, a dedicated function known as the Group Risk Management had been

Financial risk management is carried out through risk assessment and reviews, internal
control systems and adherence to Group financial risk management policies, which are
reported to and approved by the Board of Directors. The Board also approves the treasury
policies, which cover the managément of these risks.

The main areas of financial risks faced by the Group are set out as follows:
(a) Creditrisk

Credit risk is the potential loss of revenue, either principal or interest or both, arising
from customers or counterparties’ failure or unwillingness to honour their financial and
contractual obligations when they are due. These obligations are from lending,
placement and other activities undertaken by the Bank.

Credit risk management activities conducted by the Bank are within Credit Risk
Management Framework approved by the Board of Directors. This includes risk
identification, assessment, measurement and monitoring.

Credit risk is principally managed through the establishment of lending directions, risk
appetite and policies and guidelines to enhance loan/financing asset quality. Credit
processes are structured to ensure adherence to credit policies and to establish
impartiality in loanffinancing origination, approval, documentation, disbursement and
settlement.
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47. Financial Instruments Risk (cont'd.)
(a) Credit risk (cont'd.)

All credit proposals are.rated using an internal two dimensional credit rating system to
measure each borrower’s risk of default and facility risk. Only viable credit proposals
with well-mitigated risk are considered for financing.

Credit reviews on existing customers are performed at least once a year and more
frequent on watch-list accounts to proactively manage any delinquencies, maximise
recoveries and to ensure timely recognition of asset impairment.

Prudential limits are established according to various categories such as customer and
industry sector to minimise concentration risk. Single Customer Limit ("SCL") has been
extended to capture the Group exposure to manage the Bank's and subsidiaries’
concentration risk to common group of customers at group level.

Sector limit for commercial lending is being observed to monitor undesirable
concentration which could expose the Bank to higher risk of lending. Meanwhile,
counterparty limits are in place to control over exposure to a single financial institution.

Collateral is taken whénever possible to mitigate credit risk. The value of collateral is
monitored periodically through updated valuation. Policies and processes are in place
to monitor collateral value.

The overall credit risk management is subject to an ongoing process for reviewing and
enhancement from time to time so as to be in line with regulatory requirements. Audit is
periodically performed by the Group Internal Audit to ensure that credit policies and
procedures are complied with.
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47. Financial Instruments Risk (cont'd.)

(a) Credit risk (cont'd.)
(i) Credit exposure

Credit exposure

Note

On balance sheet:
Cash and short
term deposits
Deposits and
placements with
financial
institutions
Financial investments
- AFS
Financial investments
-HTM
Loans, advances
and financing
Other assets

Other assets not subject
to credit risk

Off balance sheet:
Commitments and

Contingencies 40(a)

Group Bank
2016 2016 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
1,295,499 1,419,525 1,028,268 1,126,210
- 51,672 - -
3,697,485 2,099,063 3,693,962 2,094 592
185,744 184,489 185,722 184,467
21,210,083 22,757,349 21,006,098 22,572 456
318,440 230,968 208,108 167,999
26,707,251 26,743,068 26,122,158 26,145,724
153,741 554,563 495,950 589,842
26,860,902 27,297,629 26,618,108 26,735,566
8,351,414 5,138,298 8,136,425 4,805,553
35,212,406 32,435,927 34,754,533 31,541,119
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16562-K

Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.}

47. Financial Instruments Risk (cont'd.)

(a)
(iv)

(v)

Credit risk (cont'd.)

Aging analysis of impaired and past due but not impaired loans, advances and
financing

Analysis of loans, advances and financing that are impaired and past due but not
impaired based on the Group's and the Bank's internal credit rating system are as
follows:

Group Bank

2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Impaired:
0 month overdue 781,838 483,765 772,838 483,765
1 month overdue 133,926 37,938 129,586 37,660
2 months overdue 32,136 94,735 22,862 91,661
3 months overdue 425,781 15,921 418,694 12,826
> 3 months overdue 2,258,443 2,162,036 2,197,397 2,170,914

3,632,124 2,794,395 3,541,377 2,796,826

Past due but not impaired:

1 Month Overdue 37,784 39,338 6,706 5,554
2 Months Overdue 12,641 81,683 959 73,213
3 Months Overdue 3,362 3,796 - -

53,787 124,817 7,665 78,767

Collateral and credit enhancement for loans, advances and financing

Collateral represents the asset pledged by a customer and/or a third party on behalf of
the customer, in whole or in part, to secure a credit exposure and/or potential credit
exposure with the Bank, and subject to seizure in the event of default. Collateral
provides to the Bank with a secondary repayment source, i.e. a source of fund to help
recover its investment if the customer is unable to repay the facility obtained from the
Bank.

The Group and the Bank shall consider accepting the collateral based on its
marketability, measurability, stability, transferability, speed in realising the collateral
value, enforceability and free from encumbrances. The collateral amounts and types
held by the Group and the Bank are as in the next page:
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16562-K

Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)
47. Financial Instruments Risk (cont'd.)
(a) Creditrisk (cont'd.)
(vi) Restructured loans
Restructured loans/financing refer to the financial assets that would otherwise be past
due or impaired where there are fundamental revision in the principal terms and
conditions of the facilities. Restructuring shall be considered when the customer's

business is still viable and is expected to remain viable after the restructuring. The total
restructured loans/financing held by the Group and the Bank stood at RM9,262.2 million

(2015: RM9,328.1 million).

(vii) Credit quality for treasury credit risk exposures

The table below shows treasury credit risk exposures by the current counterparties’

rating:
Group Bank

2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Financial investments - AFS
Sovereign 2,959,889 1,236,478 2,959,889 1,236,478
AAA 299,382 326,436 299,382 326,436
AA 30,383 112,162 30,383 112,162
BBB 73,553 69,513 73,553 69,513
Non-rated 334,278 354,474 330,755 350,003
3,697,485 2,099,063 3,683,962 2,094,592

Financial investments - HTM
Sovereign 149,036 147,759 148,014 147,759
AAA 5,037 5,037 5,037 5,037
B 31,671 31,671 31,671 31,671
Non-rated - 22 - -
185,744 184.489 185,722 184,467

156



16562-K

Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

47. Financial Instruments Risk (cont'd.)

(b)
(i)

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

The Group and the Bank are exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of its
borrowings made in currencies other than Ringgit Malaysia. The Group’s and the
Bank's policy in managing their exposure to foreign currency risks is by hedging through
forward contract deals.

The net unhedged financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group and the Bank
that are not denominated in its functional currency are as follows:

Net financial assets/(liabilities) held in non-functional

currencies
Ringgit Ringgit
Malaysia Malaysia
2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
Functional currency of the Group
Japanese Yen ("JPY") 4,167 (30,219)
United states dollar ("USD") - 44,399
Singapore dollar ("SGD") 44,399 (6,997)
Functional currency of the Bank
JPY 4,167 (30,219)

The table below shows the Group's and the Bank's foreign currency sensitivity based on
reasonable possible movements in foreign exchange ("FX") rates.

Strengthening/

weakening in Effect on profit/loss Effect on equity

FX rate increase Decrease Increase Decrease
(+/-) inFXrate in FX rate in FX rate in FX rate
2016 2015 2016 2015
% RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM"000

Group
UsSD 10 - - - -
JPY 10 (417) 417 (417) 417
SGD 10 - - - -

Bank

JPY 10 (417) 417 (417) 417
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16562-K

Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 {cont'd.)

47. Financial Instruments Risk (cont'd.)

(b}
(i)

(i)

Market risk {(cont'd.)

Foreign exchange risk (cont'd.}

Strengthening/
weakening in Effect on profit/loss Effect on equity

FX rate Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
(+/-) inFXrate in FX rate in FX rate in FX rate
2016 2015 2016 2015
% RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Group '
usD 10 (4,434) 4,434 (4,434) 4,434
JPY 10 (3,022) 3,022 (3,022) 3,022
SGD 10 (700) 700 (700) 700

Bank

JPY 10 (3,022) 3,022 (3,022) 3,022

Interest/profit rate risk

Interest/profit rate risk is the impact to earnings and economic value of the Group and
the Bank due to fluctuations in interest/profit rates.

Interest/profit rate exposure arises from the differences in the maturities and repricing
dates of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items. These mismatches are actively
monitored and managed as part of the overall interest/profit rate risk management
process which is conducted in accordance with the Group’s policies as approved by the
Board.

The Group and the Bank may be exposed to a loss in earnings due to the interest/profit
rates structure of the balance sheet arising from interest/profit rates and yield curve
changes. The sensitivity to interest/profit rates arises from the mismatches in the
reprising rates, cash flows and other characteristic of the assets and their
corresponding liability funding. The Group and the Bank manage their interest profit rate
risk exposure through the use of fixed/floating rate debts and financial instruments.
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

47. Financial Instruments Risk (cont'd.)

(b) Market risk (cont'd.)

{(ii} Interest/profit rate risk (cont'd.)

The table below shows the Group’s and the Bank's net interest/profit income sensitivity
based on possible parallel shift in interest profit rate.

Group
Impact on Impact on Impact on Impact on
profit profit equity equity
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Interest/profit rate
- parallel shift
+ 50 basis points 10,416 29,055 101,845 24,516
- 50 hasis points (10,416) (29,055) (101,845) (24,516)
Bank
Impact on Impact on Impact on Impact on
profit profit equity equity
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Interest/profit rate
- parallel shift
+ 50 basis points 10,416 29,055 101,845 24,516
- 50 basis points (10,416} (29,055) (101,845) (24,516)
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16562-K

Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)
47. Financial Instruments Risk (cont'd.)
{c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter difficulty in raising funds to
meet its current and future payment obligations associated with financial obligations
when they fall due. The liquidity and cash flow risks are managed by maintaining a
diversity of funding sources and spreading debt repayments over a range of maturities.

The Group and the Bank manage their liquidity requirement on a day-to-day basis to
ensure that funds are readily available for its operational needs, withdrawals of deposits
and repayments to fund providers. The Group and the Bank may raise funds locally
and globally either through government-to-government arrangements or direct
negotiations. Other sources of funding through the capital market are being explored
on an on-going basis to ensure a diversity of funding source.
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16562-K

Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

48. Fair Values Measurements
(a) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Determination of fair value and the fair value hierarchy

Fair value is the amount at which a financial asset could be exchanged or a financial
liability settled, between knowledgeable and willing parties in an arm’s length
transaction.

The Group and the Bank classify their financial assets and financiai liabilities which are
measured at fair value according to the following hierarchy, reflecting the significance of
inputs used in making the fair value measurements:

Level 1 Quoted market prices: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets and liabilities instruments;

Level 2 Valuation techniques based on observable inputs: inputs other than quoted
prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the instrument, whether
directly (i.e. prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices), are used; and

Level 3 Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs: inputs used are not
based on observable market data and the unobservable inputs have a
significant impact on the valuation of the financial instruments and non-financial
assets.

Financial instruments are classified as Level 1 if their value is observable in an active
market. Such instruments are valued by reference to unadjusted quoted prices for
identical assets or liabilities in active markets where the quoted prices is readily
available, and the price represents actual and regularly occurring market transactions.
An active market is one in which transactions occur with sufficient volume and
frequency to provide pricing information on an on-going basis. These would include
actively traded listed equities and actively exchange-traded derivatives.

Where fair value is determined using unquoted market prices in less active markets or
quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities, such instruments are generally classified
as Level 2. In cases where quoted prices are generally not available, the Group and the
Bank then determine fair value based upon valuation techniques that use as inputs,
market parameters including but not limited fo vyield curves, voiatilities and foreign
exchange rates. The majority of valuation techniques employ only observable market
data and so reliability of the fair value measurement is high. These would include
certain government sukuk and corporate sukuk, financing, derivatives and investment
properties.

Financial instruments are classified as Level 3 if their valuation incorporates significant
inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Such inputs
are generally determined based on observable inputs of a similar nature, historical
observations on the leve! of the input or other analytical techniques.
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16562-K

Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)
48, Fair Values Measurements (cont'd.)
(b') Financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value
The following table summarises the carrying amounts and the estimated fair values of

those financial assets not presented on the Group's statements of financial position at
their fair value.

Group Bank
Canrying Carrying
value  Fair value value Fair value

2016 RM’'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM’000
Financial assets
Loans, advances and

financing 21,210,083 21,270,164 21,006,008 21,066,277
Financial investments

-HTM 185,744 253,233 185,722 253,233
Investment properties 1,563 11,080 1,155 3,830
Financial liabilities
Redeemable notes 5,920,316 5,819,421 5,920,316 5,819,421
Borrowings 2,943,584 2,603,108 2,943,584 2,603,108
20186
Financial assets
Loans, advances and

financing 22,757,349 23,049,274 22,572,456 22,827,282
Financial investments

-HTM 184,489 226,730 184,467 226,730
Investment properties 4074 11,320 839 4,250
Financial liabilities
Redeemable notes 4,352,888 3,498,933 4,352,888 3,498,933
Borrowings 4,613,383 4,015,604 4,443,632 3,807,665
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16562-K

Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

48. Fair Values Measurements (cont'd.)

(b) Financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value (cont'd.)

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each
class of financial instruments:

(i)

(ii)

Financial investments HTM

Fair values of securities that are actively traded is determined by quoted bid prices.
For non-actively traded securities, independent broker quotations are obtained. Fair
values of equity securities are estimated using @ number of methods, including
earnings multiples and discounted cash flows analysis. Where discounted cash
flows technique is used, the estimated future cash flows are discounted using
applicable prevailing market or indicative rates of similar instruments at the
reporting date. '

Loans, advances and financing

Loans, advances and financing to customers, where such market prices are not
available, various methodologies have been used to estimate the approximate fair
values of such instruments. These methodologies are significantly affected by the
assumptions used and judgments made regarding risk characteristics of various
financial instruments, discount rates, estimates of future cash flows, future
expected loss experience and other factors. Changes in the assumptions could
significantly affect these estimates and the resulting fair value estimates. Therefore,
for a significant portion of the Group's and the Bank’s financial instruments,
including loans, advances and financing to customers, their respective fair value
estimates do not purport to represent, nor should they be construed to represent,
the amount that the Group and the Bank could realise in a sale transaction at the
reporting date.

The fair values of variable rate loansffinancing are estimated to approximate their
carrying values. For fixed rate loans and Islamic financing, the fair values are
estimated based on expected future cash flows of contractual instalment payments,
discounted at applicable and prevailing rates at reporting date offered for similar
facilities to new borrowers/customers with similar credit profiles. In respect of
impaired loans, the fair values are deemed to approximate the carrying values
which are net of impairment allowances.
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16562-K

Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)
48. Fair Values Measurements (cont'd.)
(b) Financial assets and liabilities not carried at fair value (cont'd.)

(iii) Deposits from customers, deposits and placements from financial
institutions, and bills and acceptance payables

The fair values of deposits payable on demand and deposits and placements with
maturities of less than one year approximate their carrying values due to the
relatively short maturity of these instruments. The fair values of fixed deposits and
placements with remaining maturities of more than one year are estimated based
on discounted cash flows using applicable rates currently offered for deposits and
placements with similar remaining maturities. The fair value of Islamic deposits are
estimated to approximate their carrying values as the profit rates are determined at
the end of their holding periods based on the actual profits generated from the
assets invested.

(iv) Subordinated obligations and borrowings
The fair values of capital securities are estimated by discounting the expected future

cash flows using the applicable prevailing interest rates for securities as at reporting
date.

(v} Investment properties
The fair values of investment properties are estimated based on comparison with

indicative market value stated in the Property Market Report 2015 (2015: Property
Market Report 2014).
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16562-K

Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)
49, Islamic Financial Business

The state of affairs as at 31 December 2016 and results for the financial year ended on this
date under the Islamic financial business of the Group and the Bank included in the Group
financial statements are summari_sed as follows:

Statements of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2016

Note Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Assets
Cash and short term

deposits (a) 457,802 798,404 399,627 775,329
Deposits and placements

with financial institutions (b) - 16,000 - -
Financial investments -

AFS (c) 2,753,065 1,674,010 2,753,065 1,674,010
Financial investments -

HTM (d) 185,722 184,467 185,722 184,467
Advances and financing, (e) 8,224,744 6,197,878 8,191,107 6,155,234
Other assets ) 87,698 800,425 71,034 755,691
Total assets 11,709,031 9,671,184 11,600,565 9,544,731
Liabilities
Deposits from customers

Tawarrug (9) 6,020,848 5,088,661 6,020,848 5,088,661
Deposits and placements

from financial institutions

Tawarrug - 50,004 - 50,004
Other liabilities (h) 104,001 93,326 58,341 25,155
Redeemable notes 4,552,762 3,445,788 4,552,762 3,445,788
Deferred income 234,011 239,420 234,011 239,420
Total liabilities 10,911,622 8,917,199 10,865,962 8,849,028
Equity
Islamic banking funds 797,409 753,985 734,593 695,703
Total liabilities and equity 11,709,031 9,671,184 11,600,555 9,544,731
Commitments and

contingencies n 6,940,785 3,352,398 6,940,785 3,352,398
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

49. Islamic Financial Business {cont'd.)

Income Statements

For the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2016

Income derived from
investment of
depositors’ funds

Income derived
from investment of
shareholders'
funds

Allowance for impaiment
losses on advances and
financing

Allowance for impairment
losses on other assets

Total distributable
income

Income attributable
to the depositors

Total net income

Overhead expenses
Finance cost

Profit/(loss) before zakat

Zakat

Profit/(loss) for the financial

year

Note

()

(k)

0
(m)

(n)

(0)
(P

(q)

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
278,726 191,833 278,726 191,833
355,205 288,792 349,580 282,302
(126,645) (164,050) (129,227) (158,481)
(25,279) (9,417) (25,279) (9,417}
482,007 307,158 473,800 306,237
(213,343) (176,810) (213,343)  (176,810)
268,664 130,348 260,457 129,427
(26,348) (21,403) (25,925) (20,716}
(161,596) (160,430) (161,596) (160,430)
80,720 (51,485) 72,936 (51,719)
(17,805) (21,653) (14,555) {19,795)
62,915 (73,138) 58,381 (71,514)
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

49. Islamic Financial Business (cont'd.)

Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2016

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Profit/(loss) for the financial year 62,915 (73,138) 58,381 (71,514)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income to be
reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Net loss on revaluation of
financial investments - AFS (19,491) - {19,491) -
Other comprehensive
loss for the financial
year, net of tax {19,491) - (19,481) -
Total comprehensive income/ '
(loss) for the financial year,
net of zakat 43,424 (73,138) 38,890 (71,514)
- Total comprehensive income/
(loss) attributable to:
Shareholders of the Bank 43,424 (73,138) 38,890 (71,514)
Non-controlling interests - - - -
43,424 (73,138) 38,890 (71,514)
Net income from islamic
financial business:
Income derived from investment
of depositors' funds 278,726 191,833 278,726 191,833
Income derived from investment
of shareholders' funds 355,205 288,792 349,580 282,302
[ncome attributable to the
depositors (213,343) (176,810) {213,343) (176,810)
Finance cost (161,596) (160,430) {161,596) (160,430)
Net income from Islamic
financial business reported
in the income statement 258,992 143,385 253,367 138,895
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 {cont'd.)

49. Isiamic Financial Business (cont'd.)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2016

Unrealised
Capital AFS Retained
funds reserve profits Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RN'000
Group
At 1 January 2016 602,400 - 151,585 753,985
Total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the financial year - (19,491) 62,915 43,424
At 31 December 2016 602,400 (19,491) 214,500 797,409
At 1 January 2015 602,400 - 224,723 827,123
Total comprehensive loss for the
financial year - - (73,138) (73,138)
At 31 December 2015 602,400 - 151,585 753,885
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2016
Unrealised
Capital AFS Retained
funds reserve profits Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Bank
At 1 January 2016 597,400 - 98,303 695,703
Total comprehensive (loss)fincome
for the financial year - (19,491) 58,381 38,890
At 31 December 2016 597,400 (19,491) 156,684 734,593
At 1 January 2015 597,400 - 169,817 767,217
Total comprehensive loss for the
financial year - - (71,514) (71,514)
At 31 December 2015 597,400 - 98,303 685,703
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

49. islamic Financial Business (cont'd.)

Statements of Cash Flows
For the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2016

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RN'000 RM'000
Cash flows from operating
activities
Profit/(loss) before zakat 80,720 (51,485) 72,936 (561,719)
Adjustments for:
Net gain on sale of financial
investments - AFS (Note 49(k)) (7,680) (1,275) (7,680) (1,275)
Accreation of discount less
amortisation of premium of
financial investments
(Note 49(k)) (27,015) (10,757) (27,015) (10,757)
Individual allowance (Note 49(1)):
Individual allowance made 187,510 84,371 185,869 72,489
Individual allowance written back (16,924) (10,066) (13,818) (8,794)
Transferred from collective
allowance 63,794 11,305 63,794 11,305
Transferred to collective
allowance o (22,317) {(4,337) (22,317) (4,337)
Collective allowance (Note 49())):
Collective allowance made - 101,129 - 100,362
Collective allowance written back (47,094) (1,975) (47,201) (1,975)
Transferred from individual
allowance 22,317 4,337 22,317 4,337
Transferred to individual
allowance (63,794) (11,305) (63,794) (11,305)
Impairment allowance for:
Financial investments - HTM 25,279 9,656 25,279 9,656
Bad debts and financing
recovered (Note 49(1)) (6,721} (9,936) (5,490) (4,128)
Bad debts and financing written off
(Note 49(1)) 9,874 527 9,867 527
Zakat (Note 49(q)) (17,805) (21,653) (14,555) (19,795)
Compensation from the
Government (Note 49(k)) (16,289) (15,017) (16,289) (15,017)
Operating profit before working
capital changes 163,855 73,519 161,903 69,574
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

49, Islamic Financial Business (cont'd.)

Statements of Cash Flows

For the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2016 {cont'd.)

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Cash flows from operating
activities (cont'd.)
(Increase)/decrease in operating
assets:
Other assets 704,117 (781,230) 674,919 (759,877)
Advances and financing (2,153,511) (145,035) (2,163,974) (153,871)
Deposits and placements with
financia!l institutions 16,000 661,667 - 677,667
(1,433,394) (264,598) (1,489,055) (236,081)
(Decrease)/increase in operating
liahilities:
Other liabilities 38,841 (36,878) 60,468 (62,066)
Deposits from customers 932,187 2,298,088 932,187 2,298,088
Deposits and placements from
financial institutions (50,004) 50,004 {50,004) 50,004
921,024 2,311,214 942,651 2,286,026
Cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities (348,515) 2,120,135 (384,501) 2,119,519
Zakat paid (20,488) (12,211) {19,602) (12,211)
Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities (369,003) 2,107,924 (404,103) 2,107,308
Cash flows from investing
activities
Purchase of financial investments -
AFS (1,078,573) (1,418,416) (1,078,573) (1,418,416)
Proceeds from disposal/maturity of
financial investments - AFS - 540,586 - 540,586
Proceeds from disposal/maturity of
financial investments - HTM - 78,916 - 78,916
Net cash used in investing
activities (798,914) (1,078,573) (798,914)

(1,078,573)
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.}

49. Islamic Financial Business (cont'd.)

Statements of Cash Flows
For the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2016 {cont'd.)

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Cash flows from financing
activities
Receipt from issuance of
redeemable notes 1,106,974 - 1,108,974 -

Reclassification of financial

investment - AFS to Islamic

financial business - (794,538) - (794,538)
Reclassification of financial

investment - HTM to Islamic

financial business - (252,993) - (252,993)
Net cash generated/(used in)

from financing activities 1,106,974  (1,047,531) 1,106,974 (1,047,531)
Cash and cash equivalents

(Note A) '
Net (decrease)/increase in cash

and cash equivalents (340,602) 261,479 (375,702) 260,863
Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of financial year 798,404 536,925 775,329 514,466
Cash and cash equivalents at

end of financiat year 457,802 798,404 399,627 775,329

(A) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flows statements comprise the following

statements of financial position amounts: . N
Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RN'000

Cash and short term deposits 457 802 798,404 399,627 775,329
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

49. Islamic Financial Business (cont'd.)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Cash and short term deposits

Cash and bank balances with

financial institutions

Money at call and deposit

placements maturing
within one month

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
12,993 24,431 4,828 1,356
444 809 773,973 394,799 773,973
457,802 798,404 399,627 775,329

Deposits and placements with financial institutions

Licensed banks

Financial investments - AFS

At fair value

Money market instruments:
Government investment issues

At fair value
Unquoted securities:
(In Malaysia)
Private debt securities

- - 16,000
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Group and Bank

2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
1,141,858 872,907
1,611,207 801,103
2,753,065 1,674,010
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)
49. Islamic Financial Business (cont'd.)
(d) Financial investments - HTM

Group and Bank
2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000

At amortised cost
Money market instruments:

Cagamas 5,037 5,036
Unquoted securities:

(In Malaysia)

Private debt securities 527,365 500,832
Less: Accumulated impairment losses (346,680) (321,401)

180,685 179,431

185,722 184,467

Indicative market vatues of the financial investments - HTM are as follows:

Group and Bank
2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000

Cagamas 5,029 5,066
Unquoted private debt securities 248,204 221,663
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Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

49. Islamic Financial Business (cont'd.)

(e} Advances and financing

Group Bank

2016 2015 2016 2015

RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000

Bai' Bithaman Ajil 219,355 339,824 219,349 328,834

Bai' 'Inah 52,009 162,173 52,009 162,173

Murabahah 25,778 53,822 25,778 53,822

Istisna’ 5,787,662 9,678,230 5,787,662 9,578,230

ljarah 56,663 60,544 20,625 20,301

ljarah Muntahiyah bi Tamlik 110,757 146,156 110,757 146,156

ljarah Thummal Bai' . 499 - -

Tawarruq 8,442,488 1,378,762 8,425,248 1,364,783

Staff financing 13,861 16,894 13,861 16,894
Unearned income {5,675,694) (4,642,889) (5,575,694) (4,642 889)

Gross advances and

financing 9,132,879 7,094,015 9,079,595 7,028,304
Allowance for impairment on
advances and financing:
Individual allowance (647,882) (547,319) (629,735) (525,639)
Collective allowance (260,253) (348,818) (268,753) (347,431)
(908,135) (896,137) (888,488) (873,070)
Net advances and financing 8,224,744 8,197,878 8,191,107 6,155,234
(i) Advances and financing analysed by type of customers are as follows:
Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Domestic business
enterprises 9,125,687 7,074,412 9,072,397 7,019,691
Individual 7,198 19,603 7,198 8,613
9,132,885 7,094,015 9,079,595 7,028,304
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49, Islamic Financial Business (cont'd.) .

(e} Advances and financing {cont'd.)

(i) Advances and financing analysed by profit rate sensitivity are as follows:

(i)

Fixed rate:
Housing financing
Other fixed rate
financing
Variable rate:
Cost plus
Other variable rates

Advances and financing analysed by industry are as follows:

Agriculture, hunting &
forestry
Construction
Education
Electricity, gas and
water supply
Finance, takaful and
business
Hotel and restaurants
Housing
Manufacturing
Materials technology
Balance carried forward

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM 000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
7,198 19,603 7,198 8,613
6,137,351 4,406,887 6,084,067 4,352,166
1,424,769 851,755 1,424,769 851,755
1,563,561 1,815,770 1,563,561 1,815,770
9,132,879 7094015 9,079,595 7,028,304

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
5,227 5,190 - -
3,818,165 3,418,452 3,817,852 3,417,979
1,470,048 1,390,451 1,470,948 1,390,451
217,432 232,302 217,432 232,302
17,138 20,578 - -
146,840 117,196 146,840 117,196
15,060 19,603 7,198 8,613
286,419 223,723 283,470 220,310
10,259 7,422 10,259 7,422
5,087,488 5434917 5053,999 5,394,273
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49. Islamic Financial Business (cont'd.)

(e) Advances and financing (cont'd.)

(i) Advances and financing analysed by industry are as follows (cont'd.):

Balance brought forward

Other community, social
and personal service
activities

Public administration
and defence

Shipping

Shipyard

Transport, storage and
communication

The maturity structure of advances and financing are as follows:

Receivable after
12 meonths

Receivable within
12 months

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
5,987,488 5434917  5953,999 5,384,273
74 468 73,779 72,997 70,605
38,308 45,268 38,308 45,268
751,170 923,570 751,170 923,570
201,369 94,248 201,369 04,248
2,080,076 522,233 2,061,752 500,340
9,132,879 7,094,015 9,079,585 7,028,304

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM"000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
7,733,305 5,989,297 7,727,506 5,924,802
1,399,574 1,104,718 1,352,089 1,103,502
9,132,879 7084015 9079595 7028304
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16562-K

Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

49. Islamic Financial Business (cont'd.)

(e} Advances and financing (cont'd.)

(vi) Movements in impaired advances and financing are as foliows:

(vii)

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
At 1 January 894,765 568,364 866,841 544 429
Impaired during the
financial year 322,452 442700 300,372 436,722
Reclassified as
non-impaired (14,911) - - -
Recovered during the
financial year (52,691) (10,685) (45,667) (8,696)
Amount written off (114,980) (105,614) (113,330) (105,614)
At 31 December 1,034,635 894,765 1,017,216 866,841
Gross impaired financing
as a % of gross loans,
advances and financing 11.33% 12.61% 11.20% 12.33%
Impaired advances and financing analysed by industry are as follows:
Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Construction 52,009 74,049 52,009 74,049
Education 56,626 56,588 56,626 56,588
Electricity, gas and
water supply 74,257 72,816 74,257 72,816
Hotel and restaurants 102,835 98,379 102,935 98,379
Housing 7,862 10,990 - -
Manufacturing 88,973 93,450 83,915 88,825
Materials technology 10,259 7,422 10,259 7,422
Other community,
social and personal
service activities 905 865 - -
Shipping 637,215 468,762 637,215 468,762
Transport, storage and
communication 3,594 11,444 - -
1,034,635 894,765 1,017,218 866,841
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
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Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

49. Islamic Financial Business (cont'd.)

(e} Advances and financing {cont'd.)

(viii) Movements in allowance for impaired advances and financing are as follows:

Bank
2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000

525,639 560,591

185,869 72,489

(13,818) (8,794)
63,794 11,305

(22,317) (4,337)
(109,432)  (105,615)

629,735 525,639

347,431 256,012

- 100,362
(47,201) (1,975)
(63,794)  (11,305)

22 317 4,337

Group
2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
Individual allowance ("IA")
At 1 January 547,319 577,648
Allowance made during
the financial year 187,510 84,371
Amount written back in
respect of recoveries (16,924) (10,086)
Amount transferred
from CA 63,794 11,305
Amount transferred to CA (22,317) (4,337)
Amount written off {111,500) (111,602)
At 31 December - 647,882 547,319
Collective allowance ("CA")
At 1 January - 348,818 256,632
Allowance made during
the financial year - 101,129
Amount written back (47,094) (1,975)
Amount transferred to 1A (63,794) (11,305)
Amount transferred
from IA 22,317 4,337
At 31 December 260,247 348,818

258,753 347,431

(ix) Advances and financing analysed by geographical distribution are as follows:

Group
2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000

Bank
2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000

9,079,595 7,028,304

Within Malaysia 9,132,879 7,094,015
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Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)
49. Islamic Financial Business {cont'd.)

(f} Other assets

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
Note RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Other receivables 87,698 5,234 71,034 5,234
Interfund receivables (i) - 795,191 - 750,457
87,698 800,425 71,034 755,691

() Interfund receivables are unsecured, profit free and are settled subsequent to year
end.

(a) Deposits from Customers - Tawarruq
Group and Bank
2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000

{a) The deposits are sourced from the following types

of customers:
Business enterprises | 984,759 1,774,823
Government and statutory bodies 5,036,086 3,313,838

6,020,848 5,088,661

(b} The deposits maturity structure are as follows:

Less than six months 1,603,991 4,702,839
Six months to one year 4,416,857 385,822
6,020,848 5,088,661

(h) Other liabilities

Group Bank

2016 2015 2016 2015
Note RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Other payables 16,741 7,056 13,378 1,161
Zakat payables 19,337 21,807 17,137 21,807

Sources and uses of :
charity payables (i) 1,201 2,187 1,901 2,187
Interfund payables (ii) 66,022 62,276 25,925 -
104,001 93,326 58,341 25,155

(i) Sources and uses of charity fund

Included in sources and uses of charity fund of the Group and Bank is an amount
which are prohibited by Shariah amounting to RM800,236 (2015: RM800,236) and
balance of RM1,101,260 (2015. RM1,388,699) is from profit equalisation reserve
("PER").
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
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Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

49, Islamic Financial Business (cont'd.)
{h} Other liabilities {cont'd.)
(i) Sources and uses of charity payables (cont'd.)

Shariah Non-

Charity Compliance
Group and Bank Funds Income Total
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Undistributed funds as at 1 January 2015 - - -
Funds collected/received during the year 1,387 800 2,187

Undistributed funds as at
31 December 2015/1 January 2016 1,387 800 2,187

Uses of funds during the year

Contribution to Non-profit Organisation (152) - (152)
Contribution to School (134) - (134)
(286) - (286)

Undistributed funds as at -
31 December 2018 1,101 800 1,901

(i) Interfund payables are unsecured, profit free and are repayable on demand.
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(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

49. Islamic Financial Business (cont'd.)

{8

Reserves

Non-distributable:
Unrealised AFS
reserve

Distributable:
Retained profits

Movements of the AFS reserve are as follows:

At 1 January
Unrealised loss on
fair value changes

Realised gain transferred

to profit or loss
At 31 December

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
(19,491) - (19,491) -
(19,491) - (19,491) -
214,500 151,585 156,684 98,303
195,009 151,585 137,193 98,303

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
(27,171) - (27,171) -
7,680 - 7,680 -
(19,491) - (19,491) -
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
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Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

49. [slamic Financial Business (cont'd.)

)

(k)

Income derived from investment of depositors' funds

Finance Income

Advances and financing
Other income:
Fee income

Of which:

Profit income earned on
impaired advances and
financing

Income derived from investment of shareholders' funds

Finance Income

Advances and financing

Compensation from the
Government

Deposits and placements
with financial institution

Financial investments - AFS

Financial investments - HTM

Accretion of discount less
amortisation of premium

Other income:

Net gain on sale of ;
Financial investments - AFS

Fee income

Of which:

Profit income earned on
impaired advances and
financing

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
242 991 175,485 242,991 175,485
35,735 16,348 35,735 16,348
278,726 191,833 278,726 191,833
16,272 5,456 16,166 5,456

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM"000
168,655 191,530 164,604 185,776
16,289 15,017 16,289 15,017
21,507 28,008 20,133 27,529
93,068 24,733 93,068 24733
4,264 1,942 4,264 1,942
303,783 261,320 298,358 254,997
27,015 10,757 27,015 10,757
330,798 272,077 325,373 265,754
7,680 1,275 7,680 1,275
16,727 15,440 16,527 15,273
355,205 288,792 349,580 282,302
10,883 5678 10,777 5,678
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
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Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

49. Islamic Financial Business {cont'd.)

(I) Allowances for/(Writeback on) impairment losses on advances and financing

Group
2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
Individual allowance:
Made during the financial
year 187,510 84,371
Written back (16,924) (10,066)
Transferred from CA 63,794 11,305
Transferred to CA (22,317) (4,337)
Collective allowance:
Made during the financial
year - 101,129
Written back (47,094) (1,975)
Transferred to IA (63,794) (11,305)
Transferred from IA 22,317 4,337
Bad debts and financing:
written off 9,874 527
recovered (6,721) {(9,936)

Bank
2016 2015
RM'000 - RM'000

185,869 72,489
(13,818) (8,794)
63,794 11,305
(22,317) (4,337)
100,362

(47,201) (1,975)
(63,794) (11,305)
22,317 4,337

9,867 527
(5,490) (4,128)

126,645 164,050

129,227 158 481

{m) Alowances for/(Writeback on) impairment losses on other assets

Financial investments - HTM
Written off - resigned staff
Written back - resigned staff

(n) Income attributable to the depositors

Deposit from customers:
Tawarrug

Deposits and placements from financial institutions:
Tawarruq

203

Group and Bank

2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000

25,279 9,656
- 24
- (263)
25,279 9,417

Group and Bank

2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000

212,549 176,078

794 732

213,343 176,810
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

49, Islamic Financial Business (cont'd.)

(o} Overhead expenses

Group Bank
Note 2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RAN'000 RM'000 RM'000
Personnel costs (i) 17,464 13,483 17,464 13,483
General administrative .
expenses (i) 8,884 7,920 8,461 7,233
26,348 21,403 25,925 20,716
Group Bank
20186 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
(i} Personnel costs
Salaries, allowances
and bonuses 13,591 10,613 13,591 10,613
Social security cost 76 55 76 55
Pension costs - Defined
contribution plan 1,666 1,304 1,666 1,304
Other staff related
expenses 2,131 1,511 2,131 1,511
17,464 13,483 17,464 13,483
(ii) General administrative
expenses
General administrative
expenses 8,884 7,920 8,461 7,233

The above overhead expenses have been determined after charging amongst other
items the following:

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
Shariah Committee's
remuneration 306 189 306 189
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysiai Berhad
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Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

49, Islamic Financial Business (cont'd.)

(p)

(q)

(n

Finance cost

Redeemable notes

Bills and acceptance payable

Zakat

Zakat

Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
156,004 160,430 156,004 160,430
5,592 - 5,592 -
161,596 160,430 161,596 160,430
Group Bank
2016 2015 2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
17,805 21,653 14,555 19,795

Commitments and contingencies

Contingencies as at the financial year end

constitute the following:

Secured guarantees on behalf of customers given to:

Third parties

Disbursement of advances and financing to industries
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Group and Bank

2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
1,266,310 1,242,982
5674475 2,109,416
6,940,785 3,352,398
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)
49, Islamic Financial Business (cont'd.)
{s) Capital Adequacy

Capital management

Regulatory capital

The following table sets forth capital resources and capital adequacy for the Bank as at
reporting date.
Bank
2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
Tier 1 capital :
Capital funds ' 597,400 597,400

Other reserves 08,303 169,817
Total Tier 1 capital 695,703 767,217
Tier 2 capital

Government support funds 234,011 239,420

Collective allowance™ 264,615 262,672
Total Tier 2 capital 498,626 502,092
Total capital base 1,194,329 1,269,309

*  The eligible amount for Tier 2 capital is after excluding CA on impaired advances
and financing of the Bank.

Breakdown of risk-weighted assets in the various categories of risk-weights:

Bank
2016 2015
RM'000 RM'000
10% - -
20% 87,233 178,871
50% 1,431,652 511,628
100% 11,608,846 9,049,666

13,027,731 10,640,165

Without deducting proposed dividend:

Bank
2016 2015
% %
Core capital ratio 5.34% 7.21%
RWCR : 9.17% 11.93%
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 (cont'd.)

50. Reclassification

The reclassification relates to the transfer of realised gains on AFS seecurities upon
realisation that was not made in prior years.

The effect of the reclassification to the Group and Bank are as follows:

As previously As
stated Reclass restated
Group RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
At 1 January 2015
Unrealised AFS reserve 54,845 16,316 71,161
Distributable retained profits 2,474 873 (16,316) 2,458,557
At 31 December 2015
Unrealised AFS reserve 2,185 16,316 18,501
Distributable retained profits 2,419,456 (16,316) 2,403,140
As previously As
stated Reclass restated
Bank RM'000 RM'000 RM'000
At 1 January 2015
Unrealised AFS reserve 54,845 16,316 71,161
Distributable retained profits 2,333,308 (16,316) 2,316,992
At 31 December 2015
Unrealised AFS reserve 1,982 16,316 18,298
Distributable retained profits 2,384,582 (16,316) 2,368,266
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Bank Pembangunan Malaysia Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia)

Notes to the Financial Statements - 31 December 2016 {cont'd.)

51. Government Funds

As a development financial institutution, the Bank perform its mandated roles to promote
strategic sectors identified by the Government of Malaysia as follows:

(a) Tourism Fund
The objective of the tourism fund is to develop and promote tourism industry.

(b) Maritime Fund
The objective of the maritime fund is to provide financial assistance to existing and new
companies to stimulate growth in shipping, shipyard, marine and oil & gas related
activities and services.

(c) Public Transport Fund

The objective of the public transport fund is to spur the growth in the public
transportation industry and improve the quality of the nation’s public transportation

For all the above funds, the Group and the Bank act as a financier that bear the credit risk
and recognise its credit losses in the financial statements.
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